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Statement by the Management Committee 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 
 
In the opinion of the Management Committee, 
 
(a) the financial statements are drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Charities Act 

1994 and other relevant regulations (the “Charities Act and Regulations”) and Financial 
Reporting Standards in Singapore (“FRS”) so as to present fairly, in all material respects, the 
state of affairs of the SASCO Senior Citizens’ Home (the “Home”) as at 31 December 2022 and 
of the results, changes in funds and cash flows of the Home for the financial year ended; 

 
(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Home will be 

able to pay its debts when they fall due; 
 
(c) the Home has used the donation moneys in accordance with its objectives as required under  

Regulation 11 of the Charities (Institutions of a Public Character) Regulations;  
 
(d) the Home has complied with the requirements of Regulation 15 of the Charities (Institutions of 

a Public Character) Regulations; and 
 
(e) the accounting and other records required to be kept by the Home have been properly kept in 

accordance with the provisions of the Charities Act and Regulations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
On behalf of the Management Committee 
 
  
 
 
 
....................................................................................................... 
FARIHULLAH S/O ABDUL WAHAB SAFIULLAH 
 
 
 
 
 
....................................................................................................... 
HUSSAIN BIN YUNOS 
 
 
Dated:  3 May 2023 
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Independent auditor’s report to the members 
of SASCO Senior Citizens’ Home  
 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial statements of SASCO Senior Citizens’ Home (the “Home”), which comprise 
the statement of financial position of the Home as at 31 December 2022, and the statement of financial 
activities, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows of the Home for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.  
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the 
provisions of the Charities Act 1994 and other relevant regulations (the “Charities Act and Regulations”) 
and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (“FRS”) so as to present fairly, in all material respects, 
the state of affairs of the Home as at 31 December 2022 and of the results, changes in funds and cash 
flows of the Home for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Home in accordance 
with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (“ACRA”) Code of Professional Conduct and 
Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. 
 
Other information 
 
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Statement 
by the Management Committee but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and the remaining sections of the 
annual report, which is expected to be made available to us after that date. 
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated.  
 
If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date 
of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 
are required to report that fact.  We have nothing to report in this regard.  
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Independent auditor’s report to the members 
of SASCO Senior Citizens’ Home (Cont’d) 
 
 
Other information (Cont’d) 
 
When we read the remaining sections of the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance 
and take appropriate actions in accordance with SSAs. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Management Committee for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charities Act and Regulations and FRS, and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Home’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Home or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
The Management Committee’s responsibilities include overseeing the Home’s financial reporting 
process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control. 

 
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Home’s internal control. 

 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
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Independent auditor’s report to the members 
of SASCO Senior Citizens’ Home (Cont’d) 
 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont’d) 
 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Home’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Home to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 

the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  
 
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required to be kept by the Home have been properly 
kept in accordance with the provisions of the Charities Act and Regulations. 
 
During the course of our audit, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that during 
the financial year: 
 
(i) the Home has not used the donation moneys in accordance with its objectives as required 

under Regulation 11 of the Charities (Institutions of a Public Character) Regulations; and 
 
(ii) the Home has not complied with the requirements of Regulation 15 (Fund-raising expenses 

limit) of the Charities (Institutions of a Public Character) Regulations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Foo Kon Tan LLP 
Public Accountants and 
Chartered Accountants 
 
 
Singapore, 
3 May 2023  
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The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements. 
  

Statement of financial position  
as at 31 December 2022  
 
 
 
  31 December 2022  31 December 2021  
 Note $  $  
      
ASSETS      
Non-Current Assets      
Plant and equipment 3                             1,586,305  1,078,734  
Intangible assets 4                             67,494  62,168  
Right-of-use assets 5                             798,391  893,778  
Investment properties 6 9,627,521  -  
  12,079,711  2,034,680  
      
Current Assets      
Receivables 7 2,659,615  1,622,073  
Cash and cash equivalents 8 39,452,112  46,072,437  
   42,111,727  47,694,510  
Total assets   54,191,438  49,729,190  
      
      
FUNDS AND LIABILITIES      
FUNDS      
Unrestricted funds  44,402,323  44,838,602  
Designated funds 9 2,000,000  -   
Restricted funds 10 4,401,257  1,932,911  
Total Funds  50,803,580  46,771,513  
      
LIABILITIES      
Non-Current Liabilities      
Lease liabilities 11 311,286  504,573  
Provisions 12 70,000  -  
  381,286  504,573  
      
Current Liabilities      
Lease liabilities 11  426,899  389,921  
Other payables 13 2,570,789  2,063,183  
Tax payable  8,884  -  
   3,006,572  2,453,104  
Total liabilities   3,387,858  2,957,677  
Total funds and liabilities   54,191,438   49,729,190  
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The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements. 
 

Statement of financial activities  
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 

 Restricted Funds   

2022                   
            
    Ministry of  Ministry of       

   Evergreen Place, Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Ministry of Ministry of  
  General  Home @ HongSan Centre-based Active Ageing Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”)  
  fund Fund Services Fund Centre Fund IHDC Fund SSL Fund Total 
   (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10)  
 Note $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Income:          
Voluntary income:         
   Donations  6,428,671 364,050 8,654 71,870 9,759 84 6,883,088 
   Funding from Ministry of Social and          
      Family Development  - 1,129,385 - - - - 1,129,385 
   Funding from Ministry of Health     1,032,084 141,093 - - 1,173,177 
   Agency for Integrated Care subsidy  - 28,852 92,363 318,510 1,447,722 14,541 1,901,988 
Funding under Community Care Salary            
   Enhancement (“CCSE”) from          
   Agency of Integrated Care  - - 611,597 - 292,430 - 904,027 
Funding under Community Silver Trust (“CST”)         
      from Agency of Integrated Care (“AIC”)  - 825,536 590,990 145,858 482,897 6,390 2,051,671 
   Rental subvention from Ministry of Health          
     and Ministry of Social and Family          
    Development  - 283,999 28,320 62,416 73,823 1,216 449,774 
Income from charitable activities:         
   Income from residents  - 338,408 446,703 94,629 309,267 (1,297) 1,187,710 
Interest income:         
   Interest on fixed deposits  437,686 - - - - - 437,686 
Other income 14 - 285,806 225,134 174,730 218,358 2,069 906,097 
Total income   6,866,357 3,256,036 3,035,845 1,009,106 2,834,256 23,003 17,024,603 
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Other expenditure 17  209,320  1,071,139   642,619   360,305   580,250   5,453  2,869,086 
Finance costs  - 5,394 1,472 884 1,287 12 9,049 
Total expenditures   1,922,329  4,547,665   4,028,367   1,327,162   3,591,876   34,599  15,451,998 
         
Surplus/(Deficit) before tax  4,944,028 (1,291,629)  (992,522)  (318,056)  (757,620)  (11,596)  1,572,605 
Tax expenses 18 8,884 - - - - - 8,884 
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year  4,935,144 (1,291,629)  (992,522)  (318,056)  (757,620)  (11,596)  1,563,721 
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Income:                 
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  Funding under Community Care Salary      

Enhancement (“CCSE”) 
               

       from Agency of Integrated Care   -      -     168,786  -   90,758   -   259,544 
   Funding under Community Silver Trust 
(“CST”)  

               

      from Agency of Integrated Care   -     814,379  538,179  165,779   416,279  2,545  1,937,161 
   Rental subvention from Ministry of Health                 

     and Ministry of Social and Family                 

    Development   -     290,878  30,328  -   35,785  120  357,111 
Income from charitable activities:                

   Income from residents   -     397,352  495,349  73,135   357,690  329  1,323,855 
   Other services rendered   -      -      -     -    -    -    -    
Interest income:                

   Interest on fixed deposits  179,799   -      -     -    -    -   179,799 
Other income 14  -      287,420   325,641   198,136     278,844   1,422   1,091,463 
Total income   6,204,824   3,183,793   2,710,390   675,291     2,395,986   12,495   15,182,779 
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Other expenditure 17 107,239  975,737  489,217  299,476   473,419  2,987  2,348,075 
Finance costs    -    2,337   1,770   1,844     1,568   8   7,527 
Total expenditures   1,225,932   4,235,437   3,488,445   962,123     3,064,329   18,395   12,994,661 

                 

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year   4,978,892   (1,051,644)   (778,055)   (286,832)     (668,343)   (5,900)   2,188,118 
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The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements. 
 

Statement of financial activities (Cont’d) 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

    Restricted Funds    
2021                         
               
      Ministry of  Ministry of        
    Evergreen Place,  Health (“MOH”)  Health (“MOH”)   Ministry of  Ministry of   
  General  Home @ HongSan  Centre-based  Active Ageing   Health (“MOH”)  Health (“MOH”)   
  fund  Fund  Services Fund  Centre Fund   IHDC Fund  SSL Fund  Total 

    (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)   (Note 10)  (Note 10)   
 Note $  $  $  $   $  $  $ 
                

Expenditures:                

Costs of charitable activities 15 1,109,482  3,220,882  2,933,447  652,550   2,545,173  15,262  10,476,796 
Costs of governance activities 16 9,211  36,481  64,011  8,253   44,169  138  162,263 
Other expenditure 17 107,239  975,737  489,217  299,476   473,419  2,987  2,348,075 
Finance costs    -    2,337   1,770   1,844     1,568   8   7,527 
Total expenditures   1,225,932   4,235,437   3,488,445   962,123     3,064,329   18,395   12,994,661 

                 

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year   4,978,892   (1,051,644)   (778,055)   (286,832)     (668,343)   (5,900)   2,188,118 
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Statement of financial activities (Cont’d) 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

    Restricted Funds    
2021                         
               
      Ministry of  Ministry of        
    Evergreen Place,  Health (“MOH”)  Health (“MOH”)   Ministry of  Ministry of   
  General  Home @ HongSan  Centre-based  Active Ageing   Health (“MOH”)  Health (“MOH”)   
  fund  Fund  Services Fund  Centre Fund   IHDC Fund  SSL Fund  Total 

    (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)   (Note 10)  (Note 10)   
 Note $  $  $  $   $  $  $ 
                

Expenditures:                

Costs of charitable activities 15 1,109,482  3,220,882  2,933,447  652,550   2,545,173  15,262  10,476,796 
Costs of governance activities 16 9,211  36,481  64,011  8,253   44,169  138  162,263 
Other expenditure 17 107,239  975,737  489,217  299,476   473,419  2,987  2,348,075 
Finance costs    -    2,337   1,770   1,844     1,568   8   7,527 
Total expenditures   1,225,932   4,235,437   3,488,445   962,123     3,064,329   18,395   12,994,661 

                 

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year   4,978,892   (1,051,644)   (778,055)   (286,832)     (668,343)   (5,900)   2,188,118 
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Statement of financial activities (Cont’d) 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

    Restricted Funds    
2021                         
               
      Ministry of  Ministry of        
    Evergreen Place,  Health (“MOH”)  Health (“MOH”)   Ministry of  Ministry of   
  General  Home @ HongSan  Centre-based  Active Ageing   Health (“MOH”)  Health (“MOH”)   
  fund  Fund  Services Fund  Centre Fund   IHDC Fund  SSL Fund  Total 

    (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)   (Note 10)  (Note 10)   
 Note $  $  $  $   $  $  $ 
                

Expenditures:                

Costs of charitable activities 15 1,109,482  3,220,882  2,933,447  652,550   2,545,173  15,262  10,476,796 
Costs of governance activities 16 9,211  36,481  64,011  8,253   44,169  138  162,263 
Other expenditure 17 107,239  975,737  489,217  299,476   473,419  2,987  2,348,075 
Finance costs    -    2,337   1,770   1,844     1,568   8   7,527 
Total expenditures   1,225,932   4,235,437   3,488,445   962,123     3,064,329   18,395   12,994,661 

                 

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year   4,978,892   (1,051,644)   (778,055)   (286,832)     (668,343)   (5,900)   2,188,118 
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The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements. 
 

Statement of changes in funds 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 
 

 Unrestricted Designated        

 Funds Funds Restricted Funds 

2022                 
     

 Ministry of Ministry of   
    Ministry of Ministry of Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”)   
   Evergreen Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Integrated Home Senior Supportive Community  
 General Programme Place, Home @ Centre-based Active Ageing and Day Care Living (“SSL”) Silver Trust  
 Fund Funds HongSan Fund Services Fund Centre Fund (“IHDC”) Fund Fund (“CST”) Fund Total 
  (Note 9) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10)  

  $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

           
          

At 1 January  44,838,602              -              -              - -              -              - 1,932,911 46,771,513 
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year,           

    representing total comprehensive           

     income/(loss) for the year 4,935,144 - (1,291,629)  (992,522)  (318,056)  (757,620)  (11,596)  - 1,563,721 
Transfer to restricted funds (3,371,423) -  1,291,629   992,522   318,056   757,620   11,596  -                          -  
Transfer to designated funds (2,000,000) 2,000,000 - - - - - -                          -  
Funding receipt for the year - - - - - - - 4,520,017 4,520,017 
Utilisation of restricted fund - - - - - - - (2,051,671) (2,051,671) 
                    
At 31 December  44,402,323 2,000,000 - - - - - 4,401,257 50,803,580 
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The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements. 
 

Statement of changes in funds 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 
 

 Unrestricted Designated        

 Funds Funds Restricted Funds 

2022                 
     

 Ministry of Ministry of   
    Ministry of Ministry of Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”)   
   Evergreen Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Integrated Home Senior Supportive Community  
 General Programme Place, Home @ Centre-based Active Ageing and Day Care Living (“SSL”) Silver Trust  
 Fund Funds HongSan Fund Services Fund Centre Fund (“IHDC”) Fund Fund (“CST”) Fund Total 
  (Note 9) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10)  

  $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

           
          

At 1 January  44,838,602              -              -              - -              -              - 1,932,911 46,771,513 
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year,           

    representing total comprehensive           

     income/(loss) for the year 4,935,144 - (1,291,629)  (992,522)  (318,056)  (757,620)  (11,596)  - 1,563,721 
Transfer to restricted funds (3,371,423) -  1,291,629   992,522   318,056   757,620   11,596  -                          -  
Transfer to designated funds (2,000,000) 2,000,000 - - - - - -                          -  
Funding receipt for the year - - - - - - - 4,520,017 4,520,017 
Utilisation of restricted fund - - - - - - - (2,051,671) (2,051,671) 
                    
At 31 December  44,402,323 2,000,000 - - - - - 4,401,257 50,803,580 
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The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements. 
 

Statement of changes in funds 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 
 

 Unrestricted Designated        

 Funds Funds Restricted Funds 

2022                 
     

 Ministry of Ministry of   
    Ministry of Ministry of Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”)   
   Evergreen Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Integrated Home Senior Supportive Community  
 General Programme Place, Home @ Centre-based Active Ageing and Day Care Living (“SSL”) Silver Trust  
 Fund Funds HongSan Fund Services Fund Centre Fund (“IHDC”) Fund Fund (“CST”) Fund Total 
  (Note 9) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10)  

  $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

           
          

At 1 January  44,838,602              -              -              - -              -              - 1,932,911 46,771,513 
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year,           

    representing total comprehensive           

     income/(loss) for the year 4,935,144 - (1,291,629)  (992,522)  (318,056)  (757,620)  (11,596)  - 1,563,721 
Transfer to restricted funds (3,371,423) -  1,291,629   992,522   318,056   757,620   11,596  -                          -  
Transfer to designated funds (2,000,000) 2,000,000 - - - - - -                          -  
Funding receipt for the year - - - - - - - 4,520,017 4,520,017 
Utilisation of restricted fund - - - - - - - (2,051,671) (2,051,671) 
                    
At 31 December  44,402,323 2,000,000 - - - - - 4,401,257 50,803,580 
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The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements. 
 

Statement of changes in funds 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 
 

 Unrestricted Designated        

 Funds Funds Restricted Funds 

2022                 
     

 Ministry of Ministry of   
    Ministry of Ministry of Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”)   
   Evergreen Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Integrated Home Senior Supportive Community  
 General Programme Place, Home @ Centre-based Active Ageing and Day Care Living (“SSL”) Silver Trust  
 Fund Funds HongSan Fund Services Fund Centre Fund (“IHDC”) Fund Fund (“CST”) Fund Total 
  (Note 9) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10)  

  $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

           
          

At 1 January  44,838,602              -              -              - -              -              - 1,932,911 46,771,513 
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year,           

    representing total comprehensive           

     income/(loss) for the year 4,935,144 - (1,291,629)  (992,522)  (318,056)  (757,620)  (11,596)  - 1,563,721 
Transfer to restricted funds (3,371,423) -  1,291,629   992,522   318,056   757,620   11,596  -                          -  
Transfer to designated funds (2,000,000) 2,000,000 - - - - - -                          -  
Funding receipt for the year - - - - - - - 4,520,017 4,520,017 
Utilisation of restricted fund - - - - - - - (2,051,671) (2,051,671) 
                    
At 31 December  44,402,323 2,000,000 - - - - - 4,401,257 50,803,580 
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The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements. 
 

Statement of changes in funds 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 
 

 Unrestricted Designated        

 Funds Funds Restricted Funds 

2022                 
     

 Ministry of Ministry of   
    Ministry of Ministry of Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”)   
   Evergreen Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Integrated Home Senior Supportive Community  
 General Programme Place, Home @ Centre-based Active Ageing and Day Care Living (“SSL”) Silver Trust  
 Fund Funds HongSan Fund Services Fund Centre Fund (“IHDC”) Fund Fund (“CST”) Fund Total 
  (Note 9) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10)  

  $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

           
          

At 1 January  44,838,602              -              -              - -              -              - 1,932,911 46,771,513 
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year,           

    representing total comprehensive           

     income/(loss) for the year 4,935,144 - (1,291,629)  (992,522)  (318,056)  (757,620)  (11,596)  - 1,563,721 
Transfer to restricted funds (3,371,423) -  1,291,629   992,522   318,056   757,620   11,596  -                          -  
Transfer to designated funds (2,000,000) 2,000,000 - - - - - -                          -  
Funding receipt for the year - - - - - - - 4,520,017 4,520,017 
Utilisation of restricted fund - - - - - - - (2,051,671) (2,051,671) 
                    
At 31 December  44,402,323 2,000,000 - - - - - 4,401,257 50,803,580 
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The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements. 
 

Statement of changes in funds 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 
 

 Unrestricted Designated        

 Funds Funds Restricted Funds 

2022                 
     

 Ministry of Ministry of   
    Ministry of Ministry of Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”)   
   Evergreen Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Integrated Home Senior Supportive Community  
 General Programme Place, Home @ Centre-based Active Ageing and Day Care Living (“SSL”) Silver Trust  
 Fund Funds HongSan Fund Services Fund Centre Fund (“IHDC”) Fund Fund (“CST”) Fund Total 
  (Note 9) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 10)  

  $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

           
          

At 1 January  44,838,602              -              -              - -              -              - 1,932,911 46,771,513 
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year,           

    representing total comprehensive           

     income/(loss) for the year 4,935,144 - (1,291,629)  (992,522)  (318,056)  (757,620)  (11,596)  - 1,563,721 
Transfer to restricted funds (3,371,423) -  1,291,629   992,522   318,056   757,620   11,596  -                          -  
Transfer to designated funds (2,000,000) 2,000,000 - - - - - -                          -  
Funding receipt for the year - - - - - - - 4,520,017 4,520,017 
Utilisation of restricted fund - - - - - - - (2,051,671) (2,051,671) 
                    
At 31 December  44,402,323 2,000,000 - - - - - 4,401,257 50,803,580 
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The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements. 
 

Statement of changes in funds (Cont’d) 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 
 

 
 Unrestricted  Designated               

 
 Funds  Funds  Restricted Funds   

2021                               

                  
 

 
           Ministry of     

 
 

        
 

 Ministry of  Health (“MOH”)     
 

 
      Ministry of  Ministry of  Health (“MOH”)  Senior     

 
 

    Evergreen  Health (“MOH”)  Health (“MOH”)  Integrated Home  Supportive  Community   
 

 General  Programme  Place, Home @  Centre-based  Active Ageing  and Day Care  Living (“SSL”)  Silver Trust   
 

 Fund  Funds  HongSan Fund  Services Fund  Centre Fund  (“IHDC”) Fund  Fund  (“CST”) Fund  Total 
 

 
  (Note 9)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)   

 
 $  $  $  $  $  $  $  $  $ 

   
                 

                   
At 1 January   22,744,332  19,906,152  -  -  -  -  -  1,661,791  44,312,275 
    

                 

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year,   
                 

    representing total 
comprehensive   

                 

  income/(loss) for the year  4,978,892               -  (1,051,644)  (778,055)  (286,832)  (668,343)  (5,900)               -  2,188,118                    
Transfer to restricted funds  (2,790,774)               -  1,051,644  778,055  286,832  668,343  5,900  -  -                    
Transfer to unrestricted funds  19,906,152  (19,906,152)               -               -  -               -               -               -               - 

                   
Funding receipt for the year               -               -               -               -  -               -               -  2,191,895  2,191,895                    
Utilisation of restricted fund               -               -               -               -                 -               -  (1,920,775)  (1,920,775) 
                                     
At 31 December   44,838,602               -               -               -  -               -               -  1,932,911  46,771,513 
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The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements. 
 

Statement of changes in funds (Cont’d) 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 
 

 
 Unrestricted  Designated               

 
 Funds  Funds  Restricted Funds   

2021                               

                  
 

 
           Ministry of     

 
 

        
 

 Ministry of  Health (“MOH”)     
 

 
      Ministry of  Ministry of  Health (“MOH”)  Senior     

 
 

    Evergreen  Health (“MOH”)  Health (“MOH”)  Integrated Home  Supportive  Community   
 

 General  Programme  Place, Home @  Centre-based  Active Ageing  and Day Care  Living (“SSL”)  Silver Trust   
 

 Fund  Funds  HongSan Fund  Services Fund  Centre Fund  (“IHDC”) Fund  Fund  (“CST”) Fund  Total 
 

 
  (Note 9)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)   

 
 $  $  $  $  $  $  $  $  $ 

   
                 

                   
At 1 January   22,744,332  19,906,152  -  -  -  -  -  1,661,791  44,312,275 
    

                 

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year,   
                 

    representing total 
comprehensive   

                 

  income/(loss) for the year  4,978,892               -  (1,051,644)  (778,055)  (286,832)  (668,343)  (5,900)               -  2,188,118                    
Transfer to restricted funds  (2,790,774)               -  1,051,644  778,055  286,832  668,343  5,900  -  -                    
Transfer to unrestricted funds  19,906,152  (19,906,152)               -               -  -               -               -               -               - 

                   
Funding receipt for the year               -               -               -               -  -               -               -  2,191,895  2,191,895                    
Utilisation of restricted fund               -               -               -               -                 -               -  (1,920,775)  (1,920,775) 
                                     
At 31 December   44,838,602               -               -               -  -               -               -  1,932,911  46,771,513 
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The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements. 
 

Statement of changes in funds (Cont’d) 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
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 Funds  Funds  Restricted Funds   

2021                               

                  
 

 
           Ministry of     

 
 

        
 

 Ministry of  Health (“MOH”)     
 

 
      Ministry of  Ministry of  Health (“MOH”)  Senior     

 
 

    Evergreen  Health (“MOH”)  Health (“MOH”)  Integrated Home  Supportive  Community   
 

 General  Programme  Place, Home @  Centre-based  Active Ageing  and Day Care  Living (“SSL”)  Silver Trust   
 

 Fund  Funds  HongSan Fund  Services Fund  Centre Fund  (“IHDC”) Fund  Fund  (“CST”) Fund  Total 
 

 
  (Note 9)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)   

 
 $  $  $  $  $  $  $  $  $ 

   
                 

                   
At 1 January   22,744,332  19,906,152  -  -  -  -  -  1,661,791  44,312,275 
    

                 

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year,   
                 

    representing total 
comprehensive   

                 

  income/(loss) for the year  4,978,892               -  (1,051,644)  (778,055)  (286,832)  (668,343)  (5,900)               -  2,188,118                    
Transfer to restricted funds  (2,790,774)               -  1,051,644  778,055  286,832  668,343  5,900  -  -                    
Transfer to unrestricted funds  19,906,152  (19,906,152)               -               -  -               -               -               -               - 

                   
Funding receipt for the year               -               -               -               -  -               -               -  2,191,895  2,191,895                    
Utilisation of restricted fund               -               -               -               -                 -               -  (1,920,775)  (1,920,775) 
                                     
At 31 December   44,838,602               -               -               -  -               -               -  1,932,911  46,771,513 
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The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements. 
 

Statement of changes in funds (Cont’d) 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
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 Funds  Funds  Restricted Funds   

2021                               

                  
 

 
           Ministry of     

 
 

        
 

 Ministry of  Health (“MOH”)     
 

 
      Ministry of  Ministry of  Health (“MOH”)  Senior     

 
 

    Evergreen  Health (“MOH”)  Health (“MOH”)  Integrated Home  Supportive  Community   
 

 General  Programme  Place, Home @  Centre-based  Active Ageing  and Day Care  Living (“SSL”)  Silver Trust   
 

 Fund  Funds  HongSan Fund  Services Fund  Centre Fund  (“IHDC”) Fund  Fund  (“CST”) Fund  Total 
 

 
  (Note 9)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)   

 
 $  $  $  $  $  $  $  $  $ 

   
                 

                   
At 1 January   22,744,332  19,906,152  -  -  -  -  -  1,661,791  44,312,275 
    

                 

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year,   
                 

    representing total 
comprehensive   

                 

  income/(loss) for the year  4,978,892               -  (1,051,644)  (778,055)  (286,832)  (668,343)  (5,900)               -  2,188,118                    
Transfer to restricted funds  (2,790,774)               -  1,051,644  778,055  286,832  668,343  5,900  -  -                    
Transfer to unrestricted funds  19,906,152  (19,906,152)               -               -  -               -               -               -               - 

                   
Funding receipt for the year               -               -               -               -  -               -               -  2,191,895  2,191,895                    
Utilisation of restricted fund               -               -               -               -                 -               -  (1,920,775)  (1,920,775) 
                                     
At 31 December   44,838,602               -               -               -  -               -               -  1,932,911  46,771,513 

                   

29-95 Financial Statements.indd   46 6/6/23   5:32 PM



 47

A Home
Refreshed

SASCO ANNUAL REPORT 2022

SASCO Senior Citizens’ Home                                                                                                                                                                        11 
 

The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements. 
 

Statement of changes in funds (Cont’d) 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 
 

 
 Unrestricted  Designated               

 
 Funds  Funds  Restricted Funds   
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           Ministry of     

 
 

        
 

 Ministry of  Health (“MOH”)     
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  (Note 9)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)   

 
 $  $  $  $  $  $  $  $  $ 

   
                 

                   
At 1 January   22,744,332  19,906,152  -  -  -  -  -  1,661,791  44,312,275 
    

                 

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year,   
                 

    representing total 
comprehensive   

                 

  income/(loss) for the year  4,978,892               -  (1,051,644)  (778,055)  (286,832)  (668,343)  (5,900)               -  2,188,118                    
Transfer to restricted funds  (2,790,774)               -  1,051,644  778,055  286,832  668,343  5,900  -  -                    
Transfer to unrestricted funds  19,906,152  (19,906,152)               -               -  -               -               -               -               - 

                   
Funding receipt for the year               -               -               -               -  -               -               -  2,191,895  2,191,895                    
Utilisation of restricted fund               -               -               -               -                 -               -  (1,920,775)  (1,920,775) 
                                     
At 31 December   44,838,602               -               -               -  -               -               -  1,932,911  46,771,513 
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Statement of changes in funds (Cont’d) 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
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2021                               
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 Ministry of  Health (“MOH”)     
 

 
      Ministry of  Ministry of  Health (“MOH”)  Senior     

 
 

    Evergreen  Health (“MOH”)  Health (“MOH”)  Integrated Home  Supportive  Community   
 

 General  Programme  Place, Home @  Centre-based  Active Ageing  and Day Care  Living (“SSL”)  Silver Trust   
 

 Fund  Funds  HongSan Fund  Services Fund  Centre Fund  (“IHDC”) Fund  Fund  (“CST”) Fund  Total 
 

 
  (Note 9)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)  (Note 10)   

 
 $  $  $  $  $  $  $  $  $ 

   
                 

                   
At 1 January   22,744,332  19,906,152  -  -  -  -  -  1,661,791  44,312,275 
    

                 

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year,   
                 

    representing total 
comprehensive   

                 

  income/(loss) for the year  4,978,892               -  (1,051,644)  (778,055)  (286,832)  (668,343)  (5,900)               -  2,188,118                    
Transfer to restricted funds  (2,790,774)               -  1,051,644  778,055  286,832  668,343  5,900  -  -                    
Transfer to unrestricted funds  19,906,152  (19,906,152)               -               -  -               -               -               -               - 

                   
Funding receipt for the year               -               -               -               -  -               -               -  2,191,895  2,191,895                    
Utilisation of restricted fund               -               -               -               -                 -               -  (1,920,775)  (1,920,775) 
                                     
At 31 December   44,838,602               -               -               -  -               -               -  1,932,911  46,771,513 
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The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements. 
 

Statement of cash flows 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 
 
 

  2022   2021 
 Note $  $ 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities     
Surplus before tax  1,572,605  2,188,118 
Adjustments for:     
Fixed assets written off 3 536    12,590  
Depreciation of plant and equipment 3  422,700   276,242  
Amortisation of intangible assets 4  19,834    3,222  
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 5  481,765    435,682  
Depreciation of investment properties 6 48,379  - 
Interest income  (437,686)    (179,799) 
Amortisation of deferred income 13  (15,179)    (8,897) 
Government grants 10  (2,051,671)    (1,920,775) 
Interest on lease liabilities  9,049     7,527 
Operating cash flows before movements     
 in working capital  50,332  813,910 
Changes in receivables  (1,037,542)   841,729  
Changes in payables   522,785   801,273  
Cash (used in)/generated from operations   (464,425)  2,456,912 
Government grant received  4,520,017  2,191,895 
Net cash generated from operating activities  4,055,592  4,648,807  
     
Cash Flows from Investing Activities     
Acquisition of plant and equipment 3 (930,807)   (808,073) 
Acquisition of intangible assets 4 (25,160)   (65,390) 
Acquisition of investment properties 6 (9,675,900)  - 
Interest received  437,686  179,799 
Net cash used in investing activities  (10,194,181)  (693,664) 
     
Cash Flows from Financing Activities     
Lease liabilities:     
- Principal paid A (472,687)  (439,636) 
- Interest paid A (9,049)  (7,527) 
Net cash used in financing activities  (481,736)  (447,163) 
     
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents  (6,620,325)  3,507,980 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  46,072,437  42,564,457 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 8 39,452,112  46,072,437 
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Acquisition of intangible assets 4 (25,160)   (65,390) 
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Interest received  437,686  179,799 
Net cash used in investing activities  (10,194,181)  (693,664) 
     
Cash Flows from Financing Activities     
Lease liabilities:     
- Principal paid A (472,687)  (439,636) 
- Interest paid A (9,049)  (7,527) 
Net cash used in financing activities  (481,736)  (447,163) 
     
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents  (6,620,325)  3,507,980 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  46,072,437  42,564,457 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 8 39,452,112  46,072,437 
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The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements. 
 

Statement of cash flows (Cont’d) 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 
 
 
Note A:  
 
The following is the disclosure of the reconciliation of items for which cash flows has been, or would be, 
classified as financing activities, excluding equity item: 
 

  < ------- Cash flows --------- > <- Non-cash changes ->  
 As at     As at 
 1 January Principal Interest New  Interest 31 December 
 2022 repayment paid leases expense 2022 
 $ $ $ $ $ $ 
       
Lease liabilities (Note 11) 894,494 (472,687) (9,049) 316,378 9,049 738,185 

 
  < ------- Cash flows --------- > <- Non-cash changes ->  
 As at     As at 
 1 January Principal Interest New  Interest 31 December 
 2021 repayment paid Leases expense 2021 
 $ $ $ $ $ $ 
       
Lease liabilities (Note 11) 251,501 (439,636) (7,527) 1,082,629 7,527 894,494 
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classified as financing activities, excluding equity item: 
 

  < ------- Cash flows --------- > <- Non-cash changes ->  
 As at     As at 
 1 January Principal Interest New  Interest 31 December 
 2022 repayment paid leases expense 2022 
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Lease liabilities (Note 11) 894,494 (472,687) (9,049) 316,378 9,049 738,185 

 
  < ------- Cash flows --------- > <- Non-cash changes ->  
 As at     As at 
 1 January Principal Interest New  Interest 31 December 
 2021 repayment paid Leases expense 2021 
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Notes to the financial statements   
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 
 

1 General information 
 
The financial statements of the SASCO Senior Citizens’ Home (the “Home”) for the year ended 31 December 
2022 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on the date of the 
Statement by Management Committee. 
 
The Home is registered in the Republic of Singapore under the Charities Act 1994 and other relevant 
regulations (the “Charities Act and Regulations”). The registered office is located at 991 Alexandra Road, 
#01-04 Singapore 119964. The principal place of business is located at No. 30 Hong San Terrace, Singapore 
688246. The Home was granted the status of Institutions of Public Character (“IPC”) from 7 July 2022 to 6 
April 2024. 
 
The Home is principally engaged to provide aid and relief to a group of people who are in need or in 
distress, by running a Home for the Aged and to establish and run social and community projects or 
enterprises and such other welfare activities as may be considered necessary from time to time. 
 
The financial statements for the Home include the financial statement of SASCO@HongKahNorth (Hong 
Kah Day Care Centre), SASCO@TelokBlangah or SASCO Day Activity Centre for the Elderly (DACE), 
SASCO@WestCoast or Singapore Programme for Integrated Care for the Elderly (SIECC), 
SASCO@JurongWest, SASCO@Khatib, SASCO@Compassvale and SASCO Senior Citizens’ Home (SASCO 
Home). 
 
 
2(a) Basis of preparation 
 
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with provisions of the Charities Act 1994 and other 
relevant regulations (the “Charities Act and Regulations”) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore 
(“FRS”). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except as 
disclosed in the accounting policies below.  
 
The financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars, which is the Home’s functional currency. All 
financial information are presented in Singapore dollars, unless otherwise stated. 
 
 
2(b) Adoption of new and revised FRS effective for the current financial year 
 
On 1 January 2022, the Home has adopted all the new and revised FRSs, interpretations (“INT FRSs”) and 
amendments to FRSs, effective for the current financial year that are relevant to them. The adoption of 
these new and revised FRSs pronouncements does not result in significant changes to the Home’s 
accounting policies and has no material effect on the amounts or the disclosures reported for the current 
or prior reporting periods. 
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Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 
 

  

2(c) New and revised FRS in issue but not yet effective 
 
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following FRSs were issued but not yet 
effective which are relevant to the Home and has not early adopted: 
 

 
 
 
Reference 

 
 
 
Description 

Effective date 
(Annual periods 

beginning on  
or after) 

   
FRS 117 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023 
Amendments to FRS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2023 
Amendments to FRS 117 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023 
Amendments to FRS 104 Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying  1 January 2023 
  FRS 109  
Amendments to FRS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023 
 FRS Practice Statement 2   
Amendments to FRS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023 
Amendments to FRS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from   1 January 2023 
  a Single Transaction  
Amendment to FRS 117 Initial Application of FRS 117 and FRS 109 1 January 2023 
  Comparative Information  
FRS 116 Amendments to FRS 116: Lease Liability in 1 January 2024 
   a Sale and Leaseback  
Various Amendments to FRS 1: Non-current Liabilities 1 January 2024 
   with Covenants  
Amendments to FRS 110 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its  Yet to be 
  FRS 28   Associate or Joint Venture determined 

 
The Home intend to adopt the above FRSs when they become effective. 
 
The initial applications of the above-mentioned FRSs are not expected to have significant impacts on the 
financial statements of the Home. 
 
 
2(d) Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with FRSs requires the use of judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the financial year. Although these estimates are based on management’s 
best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates. 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the reporting period in which the estimate is revised and in any future 
reporting periods affected.  
 
The areas involving significant judgement and critical accounting estimates and assumptions used are 
described below. 
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2(d) Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d) 
 
Significant judgements used in applying accounting policies 
 
Classification between investment properties and property, plant and equipment 
 
The Home has developed certain criteria based on FRS 40 Investment Property in making judgement 
whether a property qualifies as an investment property. Investment property is a property held to earn 
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals 
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods 
or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately (or leased out 
separately under a finance lease), the Home would account for the portions separately. If the portions 
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held 
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is made 
on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary services are significant that a property does 
not qualify as investment property. 
 
Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options – Home as lessee 
 
The Home determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any period 
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised. 
 
The Home has several lease contracts that include extension options. The Home applies judgement in 
evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew the lease. That 
is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal. After 
the commencement date, the Home reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in 
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to 
renew (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased 
asset). 
 
The Home includes the renewal period as part of the lease term for office building with non-cancellable 
period included as part of the lease term as these are reasonably certain to be exercised because there 
will be a significant negative effect on operation if a replacement asset is not readily available. 
 
Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
reporting date that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities within the next financial period, are discussed below. 
 
Depreciation of plant and equipment (Note 3) 
 
Plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The Home’s 
estimates the useful lives of plant and equipment to be within 3 to 10 years. The carrying amount of the 
Home’s plant and equipment as at 31 December 2022 is $1,586,305 (2021: $1,078,734). Changes in the 
expected level of usage and technological developments could impact the economic useful lives and the 
residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation charges could be revised. If the estimated 
useful lives of plant and equipment increase/decrease by 10% from management’s estimates, the Home’s 
surplus for the year will decrease/increase by approximately $42,270 (2021: $27,624). 
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2(d) Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d) 
 
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d) 
 
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 4) 
 
Intangible assets are accounted for using the cost model. The capitalised costs of these intangible assets 
are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Management estimates the useful 
lives of these intangible assets to be within 3 to 5 years. After initial recognition, the intangible assets are 
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any. In addition, the intangible assets are 
subject to impairment testing if there are any indicators of impairment, and are written off when, in the 
opinion of management, no further economic benefits are expected to arise. The carrying amount of the 
Home’s intangible assets is disclosed in Note 4. In 2022, a change of 20% in the amortisation rate of these 
intangible assets will not lead to significant change in the amortisation expense for the year and their 
carrying amount at the reporting date. 
 
Estimation of the incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) (Note 11) 
 
For the purpose of calculating the right-of-use asset and lease liability, the Home applies the interest rate 
implicit in the lease (“IRIIL”) and, if the IRIIL is not readily determinable, the Home uses its IBR applicable 
to the lease asset. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Home would have to pay to borrow over a similar 
term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment. For most of the leases whereby the Home is the lessee, the 
IRIIL is not readily determinable. Therefore, the Home estimates the IBR relevant to each lease asset by 
using observable inputs (such as market interest rate and asset yield) when available, and then making 
certain lessee specific adjustments (such as the Home’s credit rating). The carrying amount of the Home’s 
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are disclosed in Notes 4 and 11 respectively.  
 
An increase/decrease of 50 basis points the estimated IBR will decrease/increase the Home’s right-of-use 
assets and lease liabilities by approximately $4,500 (2021: $3,700) respectively.  
 
 
2(e) Significant accounting policies 
 
Plant and equipment 
 
Plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent to recognition, plant and equipment are 
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.  
 
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line method to allocate depreciable amounts over their estimated 
useful lives. The estimated useful lives are as follows: 
 
Computers - 3 years 
Electrical equipment - 3 years 
Furniture and fittings - 5 years 
Other equipment - 3 to 5 years 
Motor vehicle - 10 years 
Renovation - 5 years 
 
Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the financial statements. 
 
The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
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2(e) Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 
 
Plant and equipment (Cont’d) 
 
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 
 
The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is 
recognised in statement of financial activities. 
 
Intangible assets 
 
Intangible assets acquired separately 
 
Intangible assets acquired separately, are initially recognised at cost. Such costs include the purchase price 
(net of any discounts and rebates) and other directly attributable costs of preparing the assets for their 
intended use. 
 
Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. These costs are amortised to profit 
or loss using the straight-line method over 3 to 5 years, which is the shorter of their remaining estimated 
useful lives and periods of contractual rights. 
 
The estimated useful lives are as follows: 
 
Computer software - 3 to 5 years 
 
Leases  
 
The Home as lessee 
 

The Home assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Home 
recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in 
which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of twelve months 
or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Home recognises the lease payments as an 
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is 
more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed. 
 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily 
determined, the Home uses the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lessee. The incremental 
borrowing rate is defined as the rate of interest that the lessee would have to pay to borrow over a similar 
term and with a similar security the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment. 
 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise: 
 

• fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives; 
• variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or 

rate at the commencement date; 
• the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; 
• exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; 

and 
• payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an 

option to terminate the lease.
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2(e) Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 
 
Plant and equipment (Cont’d) 
 
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 
 
The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is 
recognised in statement of financial activities. 
 
Intangible assets 
 
Intangible assets acquired separately 
 
Intangible assets acquired separately, are initially recognised at cost. Such costs include the purchase price 
(net of any discounts and rebates) and other directly attributable costs of preparing the assets for their 
intended use. 
 
Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. These costs are amortised to profit 
or loss using the straight-line method over 3 to 5 years, which is the shorter of their remaining estimated 
useful lives and periods of contractual rights. 
 
The estimated useful lives are as follows: 
 
Computer software - 3 to 5 years 
 
Leases  
 
The Home as lessee 
 

The Home assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Home 
recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in 
which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of twelve months 
or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Home recognises the lease payments as an 
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is 
more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed. 
 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily 
determined, the Home uses the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lessee. The incremental 
borrowing rate is defined as the rate of interest that the lessee would have to pay to borrow over a similar 
term and with a similar security the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment. 
 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise: 
 

• fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives; 
• variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or 

rate at the commencement date; 
• the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; 
• exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; 

and 
• payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an 

option to terminate the lease.
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2(d) Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d) 
 
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d) 
 
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 4) 
 
Intangible assets are accounted for using the cost model. The capitalised costs of these intangible assets 
are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Management estimates the useful 
lives of these intangible assets to be within 3 to 5 years. After initial recognition, the intangible assets are 
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any. In addition, the intangible assets are 
subject to impairment testing if there are any indicators of impairment, and are written off when, in the 
opinion of management, no further economic benefits are expected to arise. The carrying amount of the 
Home’s intangible assets is disclosed in Note 4. In 2022, a change of 20% in the amortisation rate of these 
intangible assets will not lead to significant change in the amortisation expense for the year and their 
carrying amount at the reporting date. 
 
Estimation of the incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) (Note 11) 
 
For the purpose of calculating the right-of-use asset and lease liability, the Home applies the interest rate 
implicit in the lease (“IRIIL”) and, if the IRIIL is not readily determinable, the Home uses its IBR applicable 
to the lease asset. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Home would have to pay to borrow over a similar 
term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment. For most of the leases whereby the Home is the lessee, the 
IRIIL is not readily determinable. Therefore, the Home estimates the IBR relevant to each lease asset by 
using observable inputs (such as market interest rate and asset yield) when available, and then making 
certain lessee specific adjustments (such as the Home’s credit rating). The carrying amount of the Home’s 
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are disclosed in Notes 4 and 11 respectively.  
 
An increase/decrease of 50 basis points the estimated IBR will decrease/increase the Home’s right-of-use 
assets and lease liabilities by approximately $4,500 (2021: $3,700) respectively.  
 
 
2(e) Significant accounting policies 
 
Plant and equipment 
 
Plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent to recognition, plant and equipment are 
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.  
 
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line method to allocate depreciable amounts over their estimated 
useful lives. The estimated useful lives are as follows: 
 
Computers - 3 years 
Electrical equipment - 3 years 
Furniture and fittings - 5 years 
Other equipment - 3 to 5 years 
Motor vehicle - 10 years 
Renovation - 5 years 
 
Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the financial statements. 
 
The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
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2(e) Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 
 
Plant and equipment (Cont’d) 
 
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 
 
The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is 
recognised in statement of financial activities. 
 
Intangible assets 
 
Intangible assets acquired separately 
 
Intangible assets acquired separately, are initially recognised at cost. Such costs include the purchase price 
(net of any discounts and rebates) and other directly attributable costs of preparing the assets for their 
intended use. 
 
Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. These costs are amortised to profit 
or loss using the straight-line method over 3 to 5 years, which is the shorter of their remaining estimated 
useful lives and periods of contractual rights. 
 
The estimated useful lives are as follows: 
 
Computer software - 3 to 5 years 
 
Leases  
 
The Home as lessee 
 

The Home assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Home 
recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in 
which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of twelve months 
or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Home recognises the lease payments as an 
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is 
more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed. 
 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily 
determined, the Home uses the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lessee. The incremental 
borrowing rate is defined as the rate of interest that the lessee would have to pay to borrow over a similar 
term and with a similar security the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment. 
 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise: 
 

• fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives; 
• variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or 

rate at the commencement date; 
• the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; 
• exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; 

and 
• payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an 

option to terminate the lease.
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2(e) Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 
 
Plant and equipment (Cont’d) 
 
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 
 
The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is 
recognised in statement of financial activities. 
 
Intangible assets 
 
Intangible assets acquired separately 
 
Intangible assets acquired separately, are initially recognised at cost. Such costs include the purchase price 
(net of any discounts and rebates) and other directly attributable costs of preparing the assets for their 
intended use. 
 
Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. These costs are amortised to profit 
or loss using the straight-line method over 3 to 5 years, which is the shorter of their remaining estimated 
useful lives and periods of contractual rights. 
 
The estimated useful lives are as follows: 
 
Computer software - 3 to 5 years 
 
Leases  
 
The Home as lessee 
 

The Home assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Home 
recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in 
which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of twelve months 
or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Home recognises the lease payments as an 
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is 
more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed. 
 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily 
determined, the Home uses the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lessee. The incremental 
borrowing rate is defined as the rate of interest that the lessee would have to pay to borrow over a similar 
term and with a similar security the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment. 
 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise: 
 

• fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives; 
• variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or 

rate at the commencement date; 
• the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; 
• exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; 

and 
• payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an 

option to terminate the lease.
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2(e) Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 
 
Leases (Cont’d) 
 
The Home as lessee (Cont’d) 
 
Variable lease payments that are not based on an index or a rate are not included as part of the 
measurement and initial recognition of the lease liability. The Home shall recognise those lease payments 
in profit or loss in the periods that trigger those lease payments. 
 
For all contracts that contain both lease and non-lease components, the Home has elected to not separate 
lease and non-lease components and account these as one single lease component. 
 
The lease liabilities are presented as a separate line item in the statement of financial position. 
 
The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost, by increasing the carrying amount to reflect 
interest on the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to 
reflect the lease payments made. 
 
The Home remeasures the lease liability (with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset 
or to profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has already been reduced to Nil) 
whenever: 
 
• the lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a 

change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is 
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate; 

 
• the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment 

under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the 
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a 
change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used); or 

 
• a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in 

which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised 
discount rate at the effective date of the modification. 

 
The Home as lessor 
 
When the Home acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or 
an operating lease. Leases in which the Home does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. 
 
The Home recognises lease payments under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term unless another systematic basis is more representative of the pattern in which benefit from 
the use of the underlying asset is diminished. The lease payment recognised is included as part of “Other 
income”. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the 
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental 
income. 
 
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Home regularly reviews the estimated unguaranteed residual value 
and applies the impairment requirements, recognising an allowance for expected credit losses on the 
lease receivables. 
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2(e) Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 
 
Leases (Cont’d) 
 
The Home as lessee (Cont’d) 
 
Variable lease payments that are not based on an index or a rate are not included as part of the 
measurement and initial recognition of the lease liability. The Home shall recognise those lease payments 
in profit or loss in the periods that trigger those lease payments. 
 
For all contracts that contain both lease and non-lease components, the Home has elected to not separate 
lease and non-lease components and account these as one single lease component. 
 
The lease liabilities are presented as a separate line item in the statement of financial position. 
 
The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost, by increasing the carrying amount to reflect 
interest on the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to 
reflect the lease payments made. 
 
The Home remeasures the lease liability (with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset 
or to profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has already been reduced to Nil) 
whenever: 
 
• the lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a 

change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is 
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate; 

 
• the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment 

under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the 
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a 
change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used); or 

 
• a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in 

which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised 
discount rate at the effective date of the modification. 

 
The Home as lessor 
 
When the Home acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or 
an operating lease. Leases in which the Home does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. 
 
The Home recognises lease payments under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term unless another systematic basis is more representative of the pattern in which benefit from 
the use of the underlying asset is diminished. The lease payment recognised is included as part of “Other 
income”. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the 
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental 
income. 
 
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Home regularly reviews the estimated unguaranteed residual value 
and applies the impairment requirements, recognising an allowance for expected credit losses on the 
lease receivables. 
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2(e) Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 
 
Leases (Cont’d) 
 
The Home as lessee (Cont’d) 
 
Variable lease payments that are not based on an index or a rate are not included as part of the 
measurement and initial recognition of the lease liability. The Home shall recognise those lease payments 
in profit or loss in the periods that trigger those lease payments. 
 
For all contracts that contain both lease and non-lease components, the Home has elected to not separate 
lease and non-lease components and account these as one single lease component. 
 
The lease liabilities are presented as a separate line item in the statement of financial position. 
 
The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost, by increasing the carrying amount to reflect 
interest on the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to 
reflect the lease payments made. 
 
The Home remeasures the lease liability (with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset 
or to profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has already been reduced to Nil) 
whenever: 
 
• the lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a 

change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is 
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate; 

 
• the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment 

under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the 
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a 
change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used); or 

 
• a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in 

which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised 
discount rate at the effective date of the modification. 

 
The Home as lessor 
 
When the Home acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or 
an operating lease. Leases in which the Home does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. 
 
The Home recognises lease payments under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term unless another systematic basis is more representative of the pattern in which benefit from 
the use of the underlying asset is diminished. The lease payment recognised is included as part of “Other 
income”. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the 
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental 
income. 
 
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Home regularly reviews the estimated unguaranteed residual value 
and applies the impairment requirements, recognising an allowance for expected credit losses on the 
lease receivables. 
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2(e) Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 
 
Right-of-use asset 
 
The right-of-use asset comprises the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments 
made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They 
are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
 
Whenever the Home incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the office 
premises on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and 
conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and measured under FRS 37. To the extent that the costs relate 
to a right-of-use asset, the costs are included in the related right-of-use asset. 
 
Depreciation on right-of-use assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their depreciable 
amounts over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset, as follows: 
 
Office equipment  -  over lease term of 5 years 
Office premises -  over lease term of 2 to 5 years 
 
If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Home 
expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the 
underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease. 
 
The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line item in the statement of financial position. 
 
The Home applies FRS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified 
impairment loss. 
 
Investment properties 
 
Investment properties are properties which are owned or held under a freehold interest to earn rental 
income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in 
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. 
 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs, and subsequently carried 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment loss. The carrying amount includes the cost of 
replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria 
are met; and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an investment property.  
 
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over a period of 50 years. 
 
Investment properties are derecognised upon disposal or when they are permanently withdrawn from 
use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition of 
the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of 
the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised. 
 
Investment properties are subject to renovations or improvements at regular intervals. The cost of major 
renovations and improvements is capitalised and the carrying amounts of the replaced components are 
written off to profit or loss. The cost of maintenance, repairs and minor improvements is recognised in 
profit or loss when incurred. 
 
When the cost model is applied, the fair value of the investment property is disclosed at each reporting 
date. 
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2(e) Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 
 
Investment properties (Cont’d) 
 
Transfers are made to or from investment properties when and only when there is a change in use. For a 
transfer from investment property to owner occupied property, the deemed costs of property for 
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. For a transfer from owner occupied 
property to investment property, the property is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy 
for property, plant and equipment up to the date of change in use. 
 
Transfers to or from investment properties are made when there is a change in use evidenced by: 
 
• Commencement of owner’s occupation, for a transfer from investment properties to property, plant 

and equipment; or 
• End of owner occupation, for a transfer from property, plant and equipment to investment 

properties. 
 
Financial instruments 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Home statement of financial position when 
the Home becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, except for receivables that do 
not have a significant financing component which are measured at transaction price. Transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other 
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted 
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. 
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial 
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset and there is an intention to settle on a net basis 
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
 
Financial assets  
 
(i) Classification 
 
The Home classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:  
 
• amortised cost; 
• fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”); and 
• fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”). 
 
The classification depends on the Home’s business model for managing the financial assets as well as the 
contractual terms of the cash flows of the financial asset. The Home reclassifies investments in debt 
instruments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes. 
 
Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether 
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest. 
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2(e) Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 
 
Financial assets (Cont’d) 
 
(ii) Measurement  
 
At initial recognition, the Home measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial 
asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.  
 
Investments in debt instruments 
 
Investments in debt instruments mainly comprise receivables, cash and cash equivalents/ There are three 
subsequent measurement categories, depending on the Home’s business model for managing the asset 
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset: 
 

• Amortised cost: Investments in debt instruments that are held for collection of contractual cash 
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured 
at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at amortised 
cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is 
derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in interest 
income using the effective interest method.  

 
• FVOCI: Investments in debt instruments that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and 

for sale, and where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are 
classified as FVOCI. Movements in fair values are recognised in other comprehensive income 
(“OCI”) and accumulated in fair value reserve, except for the recognition of impairment gains or 
losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses, which are recognised in profit and 
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised 
in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and presented in “other gains and losses”. Interest 
income from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method and 
presented in “interest income”. 

 
• FVPL: Investments in debt instruments that are held for trading as well as those that do not meet 

the criteria for classification as amortised cost or FVOCI are classified as FVPL. Movement in fair 
values and interest income is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it arises and 
presented in “other gains and losses”. 

 
Investments in equity instruments 
 
The Home subsequently measures all its investments in equity instruments, including listed and unlisted 
equity securities, at their fair values. Such equity investments are classified as FVPL with movements in 
their fair values recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the changes arise and presented in “other 
gains and losses”, except for those equity securities which are not held for trading. The Home has elected 
to recognise changes in fair value of equity securities not held for trading in other comprehensive income 
as these are strategic investments and the Home considers this to be more relevant. Movements in fair 
values of investments classified as FVOCI are presented as “fair value gains or losses” in other 
comprehensive income. Dividends from equity investments are recognised in profit or loss as dividend 
income within “other income”. 
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2(e) Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 
 
Financial assets (Cont’d) 
 
(iii) Receivables 
 
Receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional to which the Home 
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts 
collected on behalf of a third party, if the receivables do not contain a significant financing component. Other 
receivables generally arise from transactions outside the normal operating activities of the Home. 
 
(iv) Recognition and derecognition 
 
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date – the date on which the 
Home commits to purchase or sell the asset. 
 
The Home derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of 
the asset to another party. If the Home neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Home recognises its retained interest in 
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Home retains substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Home continues to recognise the 
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 
 
On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss. 
In addition, on derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FVOCI, the cumulative 
gain or loss previously accumulated in the fair value reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. In contrast, on 
derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Home has elected on initial recognition to 
measure at FVOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the fair value reserve is not 
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained earnings. 
 
Impairment of financial assets 
 
The Home recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on receivables. The amount of 
expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial 
recognition of the respective financial instrument. 
 
The Home always recognises lifetime ECL for receivables from residents. The expected credit losses on 
these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Home’s historical credit loss 
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an 
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, 
including time value of money where appropriate. 
 
For all other financial instruments, the Home recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on the financial 
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Home measures the loss allowance 
for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime 
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increase in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring 
since initial recognition instead of on evidence of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the reporting 
date or an actual default occurring. 
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2(e) Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 
 
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d) 
 
Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the 
expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL 
that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within twelve 
months after the reporting date. 
 
(i) Significant increase in credit risk  
 
In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial 
recognition, the Home compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the 
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial 
recognition. In making this assessment, the Home considers both quantitative and qualitative information 
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that 
is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information considered includes the future 
prospects of the industries in which the Home’s debtors operate, obtained from economic expert reports, 
financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as 
consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast economic information that relate to the 
Home’s core operations, namely real estate, industrial construction and engineering materials. 
 
In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has 
increased significantly since initial recognition: 
 
• actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal 

credit rating; 
• significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk for a particular financial instrument 

(e.g. significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor, or the length 
of time or the extent to which the fair value of a financial asset has been less than its amortised cost); 

• existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to 
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations; 

• actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor; 
• significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor; and 
• actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological 

environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt 
obligations. 
 

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Home presumes that the credit risk on a financial 
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days 
past due, unless the Home has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise. 
 
Despite the foregoing, the Home assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased 
significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the 
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:  
 
• the financial instrument has a low risk of default;  
• the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and 
• adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, 

reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.  
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2(e) Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 
 
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d) 
 
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Cont’d) 
 
The Home considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has external credit rating of 
‘investment grade’ in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an external rating is not 
available, the asset has an internal rating of ‘performing’. Performing means that the counterparty has a 
strong financial position and there are no past due amounts. 
 
The Home regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of 
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due. 
 
(ii) Definition of default 
 
The Home considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk management 
purposes as historical experience indicates that the receivables which meet either of the following criteria 
are generally not recoverable. 
 
• when there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or 
• information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely 

to pay its creditors, including the Home, in full (without taking into account any collaterals held by the 
Home). 

 
Irrespective of the above analysis, the Home considers that default has occurred when a financial asset is 
more than 90 days past due unless the Home has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate 
that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate. 
 
(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets 
 
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the 
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following events: 
 
• significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower; 
• a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event; 
• the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial 

difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider; 
• it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or 
• the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties. 
 
(iv) Write-off policy 
 
The Home writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counterparty is in severe 
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery (e.g. when the counterparty has been 
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings), or in the case of trade receivables, 
when the amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may 
still be subject to enforcement activities under the Home’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal 
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss. 
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2(e) Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 
 
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d) 
 
(v) Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses 
 
The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default 
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the 
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking 
information as described above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by 
the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date, together with any additional amounts expected to 
be drawn down in the future by default date determined based on historical trend, the Home’s 
understanding of the specific future financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking 
information. 
 
For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash 
flows that are due to the Home in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Home 
expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. For finance lease receivable, the cash 
flows used for determining the expected credit losses is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring 
the finance lease receivable in accordance with FRS 116 Leases. 
 
If the Home has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL 
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the conditions for 
lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Home measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month 
ECL at the current reporting date. 
 
The Home recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a 
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account. 
 
Where lifetime ECL is measured on a collective basis to cater for cases where evidence of significant 
increases in credit risk at the individual instrument level may not yet be available, the financial instruments 
are grouped on the following basis: 
 
• nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Home’s trade and other receivables, and amounts due from 

customers are each assessed as a separate group, while loans to related parties are assessed for 
expected credit losses on an individual basis); 

• past-due status; 
• nature, size and industry of debtors; 
• nature of collaterals for finance lease receivables; and 
• external credit ratings where available. 
 
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the constituents of each group continue to 
share similar credit risk characteristics. 
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Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 
 

  

2(e) Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 
 
Financial liabilities  
 
Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Home become a party to the contractual 
provisions of the financial instruments. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus, in 
the case of financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. 
 
After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through profit or loss are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are 
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised, and through the amortisation process. 
 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and 
the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss. 
 
Impairment of non-financial assets 
 
At the end of each reporting period, the Home reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible 
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. 
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the 
extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an 
individual asset, the Home estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the 
asset belongs. 
 
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, 
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for 
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 
 
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. 
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in statement of financial activities for which the estimates 
of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 
 
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) 
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the increased 
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no 
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an 
impairment loss is recognised immediately in statement of financial activities. 
 
Provisions 
 
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Home has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows 
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. 
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Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 
 

  

2(e) Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 
 
Related parties 
 
A related party is defined as follows: 
 
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Home if that person: 

 
(i) has control or joint control over the Home; 

 (ii) has significant influence over the Home; or 
 (iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Home or of a parent of the Home. 
 
(b) An entity is related to the Home if any of the following conditions applies: 

 
(i) the entity and the Home are members of the same group (which means that each parent, 

subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others); 
 (ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture 

of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member); 
 (iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party; 
 (iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third 

entity; 
 (v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the 

Home or an entity related to the Home. If the Home is itself such a plan, the sponsoring 
employers are also related to the Home; 

 (vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); 
 (vii) a person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the 

key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or 
 (viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management 

personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity. 
 
Employee benefits 
 
(i) Defined contribution plans 
 
Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Home pays fixed 
contributions into separate entities such as the Central Provident Fund on a mandatory, contractual or 
voluntary basis. The Home has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. 
 
(ii) Employee leave entitlements 
 
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is 
made for the estimated liability for unutilised annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees 
up to the reporting date. 
 
Key management personnel 
 
Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, 
directing and controlling the activities of the Home. Chief Executive Officer and Management Committees 
are considered as key management personnel of the Home. 
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Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 
 

  

2(e) Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 
 
Revenue recognition 
 
Revenue is recognised when the Home satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised good 
or extending a service to the customer, which is when the customer obtains control of the good or derived 
benefits from the usage of the service. A performance obligation may be satisfied at a point in time or over 
time. If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, the revenue is recognised based on the percentage 
of completion reflecting the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. The 
amount of revenue recognised is the amount allocated to the satisfied performance obligation. Revenue 
is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts 
collected on behalf of third parties. 
 
(i) Income from residents 
 
Residents are charged a basic daily fee as a contribution to the provision of care and accommodation. 
Income from residents is recognised over time as services are provided. 
 
(ii) Income from donations 
 
Donations are recognised as and when the Home’s entitlement to such income is established with 
certainty and the amount can be measured with sufficient reliability. This normally coincides with the 
receipt of the donation. 
 
(iii) Government grants 
 
Grants received to fund operating expenses are recognised on an accrual basis, based on the funding 
principles specified by Ministry of Health, Ministry of Social and Family Development, and Agency for 
Integrated Care. 
 
(iv) Interest income 
 
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective 
interest rate applicable. 
 
Government grants 
 
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Home will comply with 
the conditions attached to them and the grants will be received. Government grants whose primary 
condition is that the Home should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are 
recognised as deferred income in the statement of financial position and transferred to statement of 
financial activities on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets. Deferred 
income are recognised in statement of financial activities over the periods necessary to match the 
depreciation, write-off and/or impairment loss of the assets purchased with the related grants. Upon 
disposal of plant and equipment, the balance of the related deferred income is recognised in statement 
of financial activities to match the carrying amount of the plant and equipment written off. 
 
Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the costs 
for which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. Government grants that are receivable 
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial 
support to the Home with no future related costs are recognised in statement of financial activities in the 
period in which they become receivable.  
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Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 
 

  

2(e) Significant accounting policies (Cont’d) 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 
 
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash 
in hand, bank balances, and demand deposits that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and 
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These also includes fixed deposits maturing 
within 1 to 12 months from financial year end that form an integral part of the Home’s cash management 
 
Unrestricted funds  
 
The Unrestricted Funds are funds which are available to be used for any of the charity’s purposes. 
 
Designated funds  
 
The Home had allocated a portion of unrestricted funds to designated funds for its 3 years Mid-Term Plan 
to be implemented from 2023 to 2025. Refer to Note 10 to the financial statements. 
 
Restricted funds  
 
The funds comprise the cumulative operating surplus or deficit arising from the specific income and 
expenditure account. The specific funds are utilised in accordance with its intended purpose. Amounts not 
utilised are accumulated in the specific funds.  
 
Current and non-current classification 
 
The Home presents assets and liabilities in the statements of financial position based on current or non-
current classification. 
 
An asset is current when it is: 
 

• expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle; 
• held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
• expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
• cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 

least twelve months after the reporting period. 
 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 
 
A liability is current when: 
 

• it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; 
• it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
• it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
• there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 

after the reporting period. 
 
The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue 
of equity instruments do not affect its classification. The Home classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
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Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 

 

3 Plant and equipment 
 

  Electrical Furniture Other Motor   
 Computers equipment and fittings equipment vehicle Renovation Total 
 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Cost        
        
At 1 January 2021 196,592 3,593 380,288 432,348 713,855 103,490 1,830,166 
Additions 90,764 - 140,513 106,074 - 470,722 808,073 
Written off (18,437) - (6,787) (7,395) - (10,800) (43,419) 
At 31 December 2021 268,919 3,593 514,014 531,027 713,855 563,412 2,594,820 
Additions 38,347 1,500 13,955 52,027 - 824,978 930,807 
Written off (331) - - - - (1,760)  (2,091) 
At 31 December 2022 306,935 5,093 527,969 583,054 713,855 1,386,630  3,593,536 
        
Accumulated depreciation        
        
At 1 January 2021 66,883 1,285 254,876 369,579 514,714 63,336 1,270,673 
Depreciation for the year 76,704 1,310 77,744 48,965 27,460 44,059 276,242 
Written off (17,173) - (5,240) (7,109) - (1,307) (30,829) 
At 31 December 2021 126,414 2,595 327,380 411,435 542,174 106,088 1,516,086 
Depreciation for the year  82,159   1,248   75,915   67,035   27,459   168,884   422,700 
Written off  -     -     -     -     -     (1,555)  (1,555) 
At 31 December 2022  208,573   3,843   403,295   478,470   569,633   273,417   1,937,231  
        
Carrying amount        
        
At 31 December 2022  98,362   1,250   124,674   104,584   144,222   1,113,213  1,586,305 
        
At 31 December 2021 142,505 998 186,634 119,592 171,681 457,324 1,078,734 
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4 Intangible assets 
  
 Software 
 $ 
Cost  
  
At 1 January 2021 - 
Additions 65,390 
At 31 December 2021 65,390 
Additions 25,160 
At 31 December 2022 90,550 
  
Accumulated amortisation  
  
At 1 January 2021  - 
Amortisation for the year 3,222 
At 31 December 2021 3,222 
Amortisation for the year 19,834 
At 31 December 2022 23,056 
  
Carrying amount  
  
At 31 December 2022 67,494 
  
At 31 December 2021 62,168 

 
 
5 Right-of-use assets  
 

 Office Office Reinstatement  
 equipment premises cost Total 
 $ $ $ $ 
Cost     
     
At 1 January 2021 70,605 655,424 - 726,029 
Additions - 1,082,629 - 1,082,629 
At 31 December 2021 70,605 1,738,053 - 1,808,658 
Additions - 316,378 70,000  386,378 
Expiry of lease contracts - (455,613) - (455,613) 
At 31 December 2022  70,605   1,598,818  70,000  1,739,423 
     
     
Accumulated depreciation     
     
At 1 January 2021 23,967 455,231 - 479,198 
Depreciation for the year 13,496 422,186 - 435,682 
At 31 December 2021 37,463 877,417 - 914,880 
Depreciation for the year  14,680   467,085  -  481,765  
Expiry of lease contracts -  (455,613) -  (455,613) 
At 31 December 2022  52,143   888,889  -  941,032  
     
Carrying amount     
     
At 31 December 2022  18,462   709,929  70,000  798,391 
     
At 31 December 2021 33,142 860,636 - 893,778 
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Amortisation for the year 19,834 
At 31 December 2022 23,056 
  
Carrying amount  
  
At 31 December 2022 67,494 
  
At 31 December 2021 62,168 

 
 
5 Right-of-use assets  
 

 Office Office Reinstatement  
 equipment premises cost Total 
 $ $ $ $ 
Cost     
     
At 1 January 2021 70,605 655,424 - 726,029 
Additions - 1,082,629 - 1,082,629 
At 31 December 2021 70,605 1,738,053 - 1,808,658 
Additions - 316,378 70,000  386,378 
Expiry of lease contracts - (455,613) - (455,613) 
At 31 December 2022  70,605   1,598,818  70,000  1,739,423 
     
     
Accumulated depreciation     
     
At 1 January 2021 23,967 455,231 - 479,198 
Depreciation for the year 13,496 422,186 - 435,682 
At 31 December 2021 37,463 877,417 - 914,880 
Depreciation for the year  14,680   467,085  -  481,765  
Expiry of lease contracts -  (455,613) -  (455,613) 
At 31 December 2022  52,143   888,889  -  941,032  
     
Carrying amount     
     
At 31 December 2022  18,462   709,929  70,000  798,391 
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4 Intangible assets 
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At 31 December 2022  18,462   709,929  70,000  798,391 
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5 Right-of-use assets (Cont’d) 
 
Details of the Home’s significant right-of-use assets as at the reporting date are as follows: 
 

Property name/    
location Description Floor area Tenure 

    
30 Hong San Terrace Four storey buildings 2,432 sqm 2 years leasehold 
(Evergreen Place, Home   commenced 19 June 2022 
@Hong San)    
Singapore 688246    
    
991 Alexandra Road Office buildings 4,000 sq ft 3 years and 10 months leasehold 
#01-04   commenced 1 March 2021 
Singapore 119964    

 
The following table presents the amounts included in profit or loss: 
 

  2022  2021 
  $  $ 
    
Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets 481,765  435,682 

 
 
6 Investment properties 
 

 Freehold 
 Buildings 
 $ 
At Cost  
  
At 1 January 2022 - 
Additions (Note A) 9,675,900 
At 31 December 2022 9,675,900 

 
Accumulated depreciation    
    
At 1 January 2022   - 
Depreciation for the year   48,379 
At 31 December 2022   48,379 
    
Carrying amount    
    
At 31 December 2022   9,627,521 

 
Note A: Additions during the year relates to the acquisition of freehold buildings at 354 Alexandra Road, 
Singapore 159948 amounting to $9,675,900 on 31 October 2022. 
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6 Investment properties (Cont’d) 
 
Details of the Home’s investment properties as at 31 December 2022 are as follow: 
 

Property name/    
location Description Floor area Tenure 

    
354 Alexandra Road, #01-01 Alexis 1 storey retail unit 1,378 sq ft Freehold 
Singapore 159948    
    
354 Alexandra Road, #01-02 Alexis 1 storey retail unit 1,690 sq ft Freehold 
Singapore 159948     

 
The amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment properties are set out below:  
 

  2022  2021 
  $  $ 
    
Rental Income 
Direct operating expenses 

55,224 
(2,967) 

 - 
- 

 
The estimated fair value of the freehold buildings amounted to $9,778,739, classified under level 3 of the 
fair value hierarchy (as defined in Note 24), as determined on the basis of management’s review of similar 
properties in the market as at 31 December 2022. The key input applied in the estimation of the 
investment property is unit price per square foot.  
 

  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
  $ $ $ $ 
     
31 December 2022     
Freehold buildings - - 9,778,739 9,778,739 

 
 
7 Receivables 
 

  2022  2021 
  $  $ 
    
Deposits 351,913  145,419 
Prepayment 97,893  56,534 
Receivables from residents 93,823  92,860 
Accrued grants/Funding receivables 1,877,457  1,246,355 
Other receivables 1,020  18,997 
Interest receivables 237,509  61,908 
 2,659,615  1,622,073 
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7 Receivables (Cont’d) 
 
Receivables from residents 
 
The average credit term period on receivables from residents is 7 days (2021: 7 days). No interest is charged 
on the receivables. 
 
The Home, being a charity, provides financial assistance to those who are having difficulties to pay their 
fees. Long outstanding balances will be assessed on a yearly basis.  
 
Management determines the receivables are subject to immaterial credit loss. 
 
There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the 
current reporting period. 
 
Accrued grants/Funding receivables 
 
Accrued grants and funding receivables are mainly subsidies for patients receivable from government 
agencies. The receivables are interest-free.  
 
For purpose of impairment assessment, the accrued grant and funding receivables are considered to have 
low credit risk and there has been no significant increase in the risk of default on the receivables since 
initial recognition. Accordingly, for the purpose of impairment assessment for these receivables, the loss 
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECL. 
 
No loss allowance was recognised as the ECL for accrued grants/funding receivables was deemed to be 
immaterial. 
 
 
8 Cash and cash equivalents  
 

  2022  2021 
  $  $ 
    
Cash in hands 6,674  5,230 
Cash at bank 1,015,252  4,721,001 
Fixed deposits 38,430,186  41,346,206 
 39,452,112  46,072,437 

 
Fixed deposits bear interest rates ranging from 0.20% to 4.50% (2021: 0.20% to 0.57%) per annum and for 
a tenure between 1 to 12 months (2021: 6 to 12 months). The fixed deposits could be drawn without having 
to incur significant cost.  
 
 
9 Designated funds  
 

  2022  2021 
  $  $ 
Programme funds    
    
At 1 January -  19,906,152 
Transfer from unrestricted funds (Note A) 2,000,000  - 
Transfer to unrestricted funds (Note B) -  (19,906,152) 
At 31 December 2,000,000  - 

29-95 Financial Statements.indd   74 6/6/23   5:32 PM



 75

A Home
Refreshed

SASCO ANNUAL REPORT 2022

SASCO Senior Citizens’ Home 35 
Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 
 

 

7 Receivables (Cont’d) 
 
Receivables from residents 
 
The average credit term period on receivables from residents is 7 days (2021: 7 days). No interest is charged 
on the receivables. 
 
The Home, being a charity, provides financial assistance to those who are having difficulties to pay their 
fees. Long outstanding balances will be assessed on a yearly basis.  
 
Management determines the receivables are subject to immaterial credit loss. 
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current reporting period. 
 
Accrued grants/Funding receivables 
 
Accrued grants and funding receivables are mainly subsidies for patients receivable from government 
agencies. The receivables are interest-free.  
 
For purpose of impairment assessment, the accrued grant and funding receivables are considered to have 
low credit risk and there has been no significant increase in the risk of default on the receivables since 
initial recognition. Accordingly, for the purpose of impairment assessment for these receivables, the loss 
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECL. 
 
No loss allowance was recognised as the ECL for accrued grants/funding receivables was deemed to be 
immaterial. 
 
 
8 Cash and cash equivalents  
 

  2022  2021 
  $  $ 
    
Cash in hands 6,674  5,230 
Cash at bank 1,015,252  4,721,001 
Fixed deposits 38,430,186  41,346,206 
 39,452,112  46,072,437 

 
Fixed deposits bear interest rates ranging from 0.20% to 4.50% (2021: 0.20% to 0.57%) per annum and for 
a tenure between 1 to 12 months (2021: 6 to 12 months). The fixed deposits could be drawn without having 
to incur significant cost.  
 
 
9 Designated funds  
 

  2022  2021 
  $  $ 
Programme funds    
    
At 1 January -  19,906,152 
Transfer from unrestricted funds (Note A) 2,000,000  - 
Transfer to unrestricted funds (Note B) -  (19,906,152) 
At 31 December 2,000,000  - 
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9 Designated funds (Cont’d) 
 
The Home’s mission and vision are to provide holistic care that makes a difference in every life that it 
touches and to be the preferred eldercare organisation, that inspires active and quality aging. In 2022, the 
Home commenced planning work on a 3-year Mid-Term Plan (MTP) comprising initiatives to be 
implemented from 2023 to 2025. The Committee of Management (COM) approved the transfer of 
$2,000,000 from unrestricted funds to designated funds for such MTP initiatives.  The initiatives serve to 
enhance current services (10 of them) and there were also four new services, all, with the aim to achieve 
the four strategic outcomes of increased presence in the pre-nursing sector, holistic approach in those 
programmes, excellence service culture as well as a process-excellent organisation. 
 
Note A: In 2022, the Home transferred $2,000,000 to designated funds for the above-mentioned 3-year 
MTP. 
 
In 2019, the management committee approved and designated the funds to the following programmes: 
 

Programme Purpose 
  
sascoACT - The funds are set aside for provision of daily activities for senior citizens as well 

as purchasing of workout equipment, craft sets and colouring booklet. 
  
sascoSKILLS - The funds are set aside to develop certain skills for senior citizens. 
  
sascoDINE - The funds are set aside for provision of meals for senior citizens. 
  
sascoTHERAPY - The funds are set aside to improve overall quality of life for the senior citizens 

as well as introducing senior citizens to modern technologies. 
  
sascoPOM - The funds are set aside to provide subsidies for the activities of the senior 

citizens. 
  
sascoHOMECARE - The funds are set aside to provide senior citizens with personalised care 

services at the comfort of their own homes. 
  
sascoFUTURE - The funds are set aside for the implementation of robotics in senior care 

environment to increase system productivity 
  
sascoMANAGE - The funds are set aside to provide the volunteers to run campaigns and 

roadshows to help the senior citizens. 
  
sascoDRIVE - The funds are set aside to cater transport for senior citizens to and from the 

Home and their place of residence. 
  
sascoDOC - The funds are set aside for provision of medical consultation for senior citizens 

by licensed doctors. 
 
Note B: In 2021, a resolution was approved by the management committee to transfer the amount of 
$19,906,152 back to unrestricted funds for general purpose. This transfer was in line with the management 
committee’s decision to close all programmes mentioned above except for sascoPOM which was renamed 
as SASCO financial assistance (SASCO FA) which will be funded by the Home’s unrestricted funds.  

29-95 Financial Statements.indd   75 6/6/23   5:32 PM



76 
SASCO ANNUAL REPORT 2022

A Home
Refreshed

SASCO Senior Citizens’ Home 36 
Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 
 

 

9 Designated funds (Cont’d) 
 
The Home’s mission and vision are to provide holistic care that makes a difference in every life that it 
touches and to be the preferred eldercare organisation, that inspires active and quality aging. In 2022, the 
Home commenced planning work on a 3-year Mid-Term Plan (MTP) comprising initiatives to be 
implemented from 2023 to 2025. The Committee of Management (COM) approved the transfer of 
$2,000,000 from unrestricted funds to designated funds for such MTP initiatives.  The initiatives serve to 
enhance current services (10 of them) and there were also four new services, all, with the aim to achieve 
the four strategic outcomes of increased presence in the pre-nursing sector, holistic approach in those 
programmes, excellence service culture as well as a process-excellent organisation. 
 
Note A: In 2022, the Home transferred $2,000,000 to designated funds for the above-mentioned 3-year 
MTP. 
 
In 2019, the management committee approved and designated the funds to the following programmes: 
 

Programme Purpose 
  
sascoACT - The funds are set aside for provision of daily activities for senior citizens as well 

as purchasing of workout equipment, craft sets and colouring booklet. 
  
sascoSKILLS - The funds are set aside to develop certain skills for senior citizens. 
  
sascoDINE - The funds are set aside for provision of meals for senior citizens. 
  
sascoTHERAPY - The funds are set aside to improve overall quality of life for the senior citizens 

as well as introducing senior citizens to modern technologies. 
  
sascoPOM - The funds are set aside to provide subsidies for the activities of the senior 

citizens. 
  
sascoHOMECARE - The funds are set aside to provide senior citizens with personalised care 

services at the comfort of their own homes. 
  
sascoFUTURE - The funds are set aside for the implementation of robotics in senior care 

environment to increase system productivity 
  
sascoMANAGE - The funds are set aside to provide the volunteers to run campaigns and 

roadshows to help the senior citizens. 
  
sascoDRIVE - The funds are set aside to cater transport for senior citizens to and from the 

Home and their place of residence. 
  
sascoDOC - The funds are set aside for provision of medical consultation for senior citizens 

by licensed doctors. 
 
Note B: In 2021, a resolution was approved by the management committee to transfer the amount of 
$19,906,152 back to unrestricted funds for general purpose. This transfer was in line with the management 
committee’s decision to close all programmes mentioned above except for sascoPOM which was renamed 
as SASCO financial assistance (SASCO FA) which will be funded by the Home’s unrestricted funds.  
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SASCO Senior Citizens’ Home 37 
Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 
 

 

10 Restricted funds 
 

 2022  2021 
  $  $ 
Evergreen Place, Home @ HongSan Fund    
    
At 1 January -  - 
Deficit for the year (1,291,629)  (1,051,644) 
Transfer from general fund 1,291,629  1,051,644 
At 31 December -  - 

 
The Evergreen Place, Home @ HongSan Fund is subsidies given by Ministry of Social and Family 
Development for funding of daily activities for homestay residents. 
 

 2022  2021 
  $  $ 
Ministry of Health (“MOH”) Centre-based Services Fund    
    
At 1 January -  - 
Deficit for the year (992,522)  (778,055) 
Transfer from general fund 992,522  778,055 
At 31 December -  - 

 
The Ministry of Health (“MOH”) Centre-based Services Fund is subsidies given by Ministry of Health for 
funding of patients fee, transportation fee, and rental of premises. 
 

  2022  2021 
  $  $ 
Community Silver Trust (“CST”) Fund    
    
At 1 January 1,932,911  1,661,791 
Funds received and receivables 4,520,017  2,191,895 
Funds utilised (2,051,671)  (1,920,775) 
At 31 December 4,401,257  1,932,911 

 
The Community Silver Trust (“CST”) Fund is a dollar-to-dollar donation matching grant provided by the 
Government to enhance the services of voluntary welfare organisation in the intermediate and long-term 
care sector. The CST is managed by the Ministry of Health and administered by the Agency of integrated 
care. 
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10 Restricted funds (Cont’d) 
 

 2022  2021 
  $  $ 
Ministry of Health (“MOH”) Active Ageing Centre Fund    
    
At 1 January  -  - 
Deficit for the year (318,056)  (286,832) 
Transfer from general fund 318,056  286,832 
At 31 December -  - 

 
The Ministry of Health (“MOH”) Active Ageing Centre Fund are subsidies given by Ministry of Health for 
funding of activities catered to senior population held at eldercare centres.  
 

 2022  2021 
  $  $ 
Ministry of Health (“MOH”) Senior Supportive Living (“SSL”) Fund    
    
At 1 January -  - 
Deficit for the year (11,596)  (5,900) 
Transfer from general fund 11,596  5,900 
At 31 December -  - 

 
The Ministry of Health (“MOH”) Senior Supportive Living (“SSL”) Fund are subsidies given by Ministry of 
Health for funding of in-situ assisted living services and round-the-clock supervision and support. 
 
 

 2022  2021 
  $  $ 
Ministry of Health (“MOH”) Integrated Home and Day Care (“IHDC”)     
Fund    
    
At 1 January -  - 
Deficit for the year (757,620)   (668,343) 
Transfer from general fund 757,620  668,343 
At 31 December -  - 

 
The Ministry of Health (“MOH”) Integrated Home and Day Care (“IHDC”) Fund is subsidies given by Ministry 
of Health for funding of home and day care of elderly and their families depending on whether they require 
minimum, moderate or maximum level of assistance. 
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10 Restricted funds (Cont’d) 
 

2022      
     Ministry of 
 Evergreen Ministry of Ministry of Ministry of Health (“MOH”) 
 Place, Home Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Integrated Home 
 @ HongSan Centre-based Active Ageing Senior Supportive and Day Care 
 Fund Services Fund Centre Fund Living (“SSL”) Fund  (“IHDC”) Fund 
  (Note A) (Note B)   
  $ $ $ $ $ 

Income:      
Voluntary income:      
   Donations  364,050   8,654   71,870   84   9,759  
   Funding from Ministry of Social and       
       Development  1,129,385   -     -     -     -    
   Funding from Ministry of Health   -     1,032,084   141,093   -     -    
   Agency for Integrated Care subsidy  28,852   92,363   318,510   14,541   1,447,722  
   Funding under CST from AIC  825,536   590,990   145,858   6,390   482,897  
   Funding under CCSE from Agency       
      of Integrated Care  -     611,597   -     -     292,430  
   Rental subvention from Ministry of       
        Health and Ministry of Social and      
        Family Development  283,999   28,320   62,416   1,216   73,823  

      
Income from charitable activities:      
   Income from residents  338,408   446,703   94,629   (1,297)  309,267  

      
Other income  285,806  225,134   174,730   2,069   218,358 
Total income  3,256,036   3,035,845   1,009,106   23,003   2,834,256  
Expenditures      
Costs of charitable activities      
   Employee benefits expenses      
      Accommodation  11,400   30,318   -     212   21,766  
      Central provident fund contribution  261,153   311,434   92,436   2,664   284,740  
      Medical expenses  13,070   14,479   3,921   108   12,444  
      Foreign workers levy  57,595   49,779   2,390   585   49,292  
      Staff salary, overtime and bonuses  2,278,090   2,380,969   614,599   21,271   2,164,639  
      Recruitment expenses  400   943   191   14   1,076  
      Training and seminar  31,773   24,202   5,580   183   21,293  
      Staff welfare  29,329   27,558   4,075   249   24,330  
      Other employee benefit expenses  65,547   190,031   12,311   1,244   147,263  

      
   Resident Related expenses      
      Doctor’s retainer fees  2,575   10,401   -     125   9,471  
      Festival celebration  15,374   1,998   1,861   48   3,725  
      Groceries  317,709   87,849   36,487   651   70,860  
      Occupational therapy expenses  27,540   70,152   -     319   42,044  
      Physiotherapy expenses  45,660   72,706   -     485   54,421  
      Resident expenses  97,545   23,349   177,049   415   34,674  
      SASCO Charity Assistance to clients  165,638   42,183   -     212   29,531  

  3,420,398   3,338,351   950,900   28,785   2,971,569  
Costs of governance activities      
      Audit fee  28,360   25,420   7,386   177   20,657  
      Professional charges  22,374   20,505   7,687   172   18,113  

  50,734   45,925   15,073   349   38,770  
Other expenditures      
   Depreciation expense      
      Depreciation of plant and equipment  3,898   3,481   9,360   29   3,066  
      Amortization of intangible asset  75,661   166,937   72,389   751   106,961  
      Depreciation of right-of-use assets  248,050   72,665   96,714   601   63,736  

      
      Other expenses  743,530   399,536   181,842   4,072   406,487  

  1,071,139   642,619   360,305   5,453   580,250  
      

Finance costs  5,394   1,472   884   12   1,287  
Total expenditures  4,547,665   4,028,367   1,327,162   34,599   3,591,876  

      
Deficit for the year  (1,291,629)  (992,522)  (318,056)  (11,596)  (757,620) 
Transfer from general fund  1,291,629   992,522   318,056   11,596   757,620  
At 31 December 2022  -     -     -     -     -    
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10 Restricted funds (Cont’d) 
 
Ministry of Health (“MOH”) Centre-based Services Fund and Ministry of Health (“MOH”) Integrated Home 
and Day Care (“IHDC”) Fund are subsidies given by Ministry of Health for the below centre-based services 
programmes:  
 

Programme Objective 
Community Rehabilitation - Covers both active rehabilitation and Maintenance 

exercise. Provide therapy, which may include 
physiotherapy or occupational therapy, which is 
important for an elderly with heart disease, or who had 
a stroke, fracture or other condition that affected his 
ability to do everyday things like walking around or 
going to the bathroom. It can help him regain his 
abilities. 

 
Maintenance Day Care 
 

- Provides a safe and supportive environment for seniors 
who need full day custodial care. 
 

Maintenance Exercise - Provide individualised Care Plan with suitable       
exercises will be created for seniors. 
 

Dementia Day Care - Provides full day custodial care in a centre-based setting 
for seniors living with mild to moderate level of 
dementia. 
 

Integrated Home and Day Care (IHDC) - Provide comprehensive and personalised care to 
support seniors with multiple care needs, to maintain 
their independence and quality of life in the community 
for as long as possible. 
 

Centre-Based Nursing - Provides basic nursing care for seniors such as wound 
management help or assistance with nasogastric tubes 
and other equipment. 

 
Centre-based Dementia Respite Care - Provide dementia day care on Saturdays, as a form of 

respite support to caregivers. 
 

Active Ageing Centre (Care) - Drop-in social recreational centre that extends support 
to seniors living nearby in the community. 
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10 Restricted funds (Cont’d) 
 

2022      
     Ministry of 
 Evergreen Ministry of Ministry of Ministry of Health (“MOH”) 
 Place, Home Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Integrated Home 
 @ HongSan Centre-based Active Ageing Senior Supportive and Day Care 
 Fund Services Fund Centre Fund Living (“SSL”) Fund  (“IHDC”) Fund 
  (Note A) (Note B)   
  $ $ $ $ $ 

Income:      
Voluntary income:      
   Donations  364,050   8,654   71,870   84   9,759  
   Funding from Ministry of Social and       
       Development  1,129,385   -     -     -     -    
   Funding from Ministry of Health   -     1,032,084   141,093   -     -    
   Agency for Integrated Care subsidy  28,852   92,363   318,510   14,541   1,447,722  
   Funding under CST from AIC  825,536   590,990   145,858   6,390   482,897  
   Funding under CCSE from Agency       
      of Integrated Care  -     611,597   -     -     292,430  
   Rental subvention from Ministry of       
        Health and Ministry of Social and      
        Family Development  283,999   28,320   62,416   1,216   73,823  

      
Income from charitable activities:      
   Income from residents  338,408   446,703   94,629   (1,297)  309,267  

      
Other income  285,806  225,134   174,730   2,069   218,358 
Total income  3,256,036   3,035,845   1,009,106   23,003   2,834,256  
Expenditures      
Costs of charitable activities      
   Employee benefits expenses      
      Accommodation  11,400   30,318   -     212   21,766  
      Central provident fund contribution  261,153   311,434   92,436   2,664   284,740  
      Medical expenses  13,070   14,479   3,921   108   12,444  
      Foreign workers levy  57,595   49,779   2,390   585   49,292  
      Staff salary, overtime and bonuses  2,278,090   2,380,969   614,599   21,271   2,164,639  
      Recruitment expenses  400   943   191   14   1,076  
      Training and seminar  31,773   24,202   5,580   183   21,293  
      Staff welfare  29,329   27,558   4,075   249   24,330  
      Other employee benefit expenses  65,547   190,031   12,311   1,244   147,263  

      
   Resident Related expenses      
      Doctor’s retainer fees  2,575   10,401   -     125   9,471  
      Festival celebration  15,374   1,998   1,861   48   3,725  
      Groceries  317,709   87,849   36,487   651   70,860  
      Occupational therapy expenses  27,540   70,152   -     319   42,044  
      Physiotherapy expenses  45,660   72,706   -     485   54,421  
      Resident expenses  97,545   23,349   177,049   415   34,674  
      SASCO Charity Assistance to clients  165,638   42,183   -     212   29,531  

  3,420,398   3,338,351   950,900   28,785   2,971,569  
Costs of governance activities      
      Audit fee  28,360   25,420   7,386   177   20,657  
      Professional charges  22,374   20,505   7,687   172   18,113  

  50,734   45,925   15,073   349   38,770  
Other expenditures      
   Depreciation expense      
      Depreciation of plant and equipment  3,898   3,481   9,360   29   3,066  
      Amortization of intangible asset  75,661   166,937   72,389   751   106,961  
      Depreciation of right-of-use assets  248,050   72,665   96,714   601   63,736  

      
      Other expenses  743,530   399,536   181,842   4,072   406,487  

  1,071,139   642,619   360,305   5,453   580,250  
      

Finance costs  5,394   1,472   884   12   1,287  
Total expenditures  4,547,665   4,028,367   1,327,162   34,599   3,591,876  

      
Deficit for the year  (1,291,629)  (992,522)  (318,056)  (11,596)  (757,620) 
Transfer from general fund  1,291,629   992,522   318,056   11,596   757,620  
At 31 December 2022  -     -     -     -     -    
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10 Restricted funds (Cont’d) 
 

2022      
     Ministry of 
 Evergreen Ministry of Ministry of Ministry of Health (“MOH”) 
 Place, Home Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Integrated Home 
 @ HongSan Centre-based Active Ageing Senior Supportive and Day Care 
 Fund Services Fund Centre Fund Living (“SSL”) Fund  (“IHDC”) Fund 
  (Note A) (Note B)   
  $ $ $ $ $ 

Income:      
Voluntary income:      
   Donations  364,050   8,654   71,870   84   9,759  
   Funding from Ministry of Social and       
       Development  1,129,385   -     -     -     -    
   Funding from Ministry of Health   -     1,032,084   141,093   -     -    
   Agency for Integrated Care subsidy  28,852   92,363   318,510   14,541   1,447,722  
   Funding under CST from AIC  825,536   590,990   145,858   6,390   482,897  
   Funding under CCSE from Agency       
      of Integrated Care  -     611,597   -     -     292,430  
   Rental subvention from Ministry of       
        Health and Ministry of Social and      
        Family Development  283,999   28,320   62,416   1,216   73,823  

      
Income from charitable activities:      
   Income from residents  338,408   446,703   94,629   (1,297)  309,267  

      
Other income  285,806  225,134   174,730   2,069   218,358 
Total income  3,256,036   3,035,845   1,009,106   23,003   2,834,256  
Expenditures      
Costs of charitable activities      
   Employee benefits expenses      
      Accommodation  11,400   30,318   -     212   21,766  
      Central provident fund contribution  261,153   311,434   92,436   2,664   284,740  
      Medical expenses  13,070   14,479   3,921   108   12,444  
      Foreign workers levy  57,595   49,779   2,390   585   49,292  
      Staff salary, overtime and bonuses  2,278,090   2,380,969   614,599   21,271   2,164,639  
      Recruitment expenses  400   943   191   14   1,076  
      Training and seminar  31,773   24,202   5,580   183   21,293  
      Staff welfare  29,329   27,558   4,075   249   24,330  
      Other employee benefit expenses  65,547   190,031   12,311   1,244   147,263  

      
   Resident Related expenses      
      Doctor’s retainer fees  2,575   10,401   -     125   9,471  
      Festival celebration  15,374   1,998   1,861   48   3,725  
      Groceries  317,709   87,849   36,487   651   70,860  
      Occupational therapy expenses  27,540   70,152   -     319   42,044  
      Physiotherapy expenses  45,660   72,706   -     485   54,421  
      Resident expenses  97,545   23,349   177,049   415   34,674  
      SASCO Charity Assistance to clients  165,638   42,183   -     212   29,531  

  3,420,398   3,338,351   950,900   28,785   2,971,569  
Costs of governance activities      
      Audit fee  28,360   25,420   7,386   177   20,657  
      Professional charges  22,374   20,505   7,687   172   18,113  

  50,734   45,925   15,073   349   38,770  
Other expenditures      
   Depreciation expense      
      Depreciation of plant and equipment  3,898   3,481   9,360   29   3,066  
      Amortization of intangible asset  75,661   166,937   72,389   751   106,961  
      Depreciation of right-of-use assets  248,050   72,665   96,714   601   63,736  

      
      Other expenses  743,530   399,536   181,842   4,072   406,487  

  1,071,139   642,619   360,305   5,453   580,250  
      

Finance costs  5,394   1,472   884   12   1,287  
Total expenditures  4,547,665   4,028,367   1,327,162   34,599   3,591,876  

      
Deficit for the year  (1,291,629)  (992,522)  (318,056)  (11,596)  (757,620) 
Transfer from general fund  1,291,629   992,522   318,056   11,596   757,620  
At 31 December 2022  -     -     -     -     -    
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10 Restricted funds (Cont’d) 
 

2022      
     Ministry of 
 Evergreen Ministry of Ministry of Ministry of Health (“MOH”) 
 Place, Home Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Integrated Home 
 @ HongSan Centre-based Active Ageing Senior Supportive and Day Care 
 Fund Services Fund Centre Fund Living (“SSL”) Fund  (“IHDC”) Fund 
  (Note A) (Note B)   
  $ $ $ $ $ 

Income:      
Voluntary income:      
   Donations  364,050   8,654   71,870   84   9,759  
   Funding from Ministry of Social and       
       Development  1,129,385   -     -     -     -    
   Funding from Ministry of Health   -     1,032,084   141,093   -     -    
   Agency for Integrated Care subsidy  28,852   92,363   318,510   14,541   1,447,722  
   Funding under CST from AIC  825,536   590,990   145,858   6,390   482,897  
   Funding under CCSE from Agency       
      of Integrated Care  -     611,597   -     -     292,430  
   Rental subvention from Ministry of       
        Health and Ministry of Social and      
        Family Development  283,999   28,320   62,416   1,216   73,823  

      
Income from charitable activities:      
   Income from residents  338,408   446,703   94,629   (1,297)  309,267  

      
Other income  285,806  225,134   174,730   2,069   218,358 
Total income  3,256,036   3,035,845   1,009,106   23,003   2,834,256  
Expenditures      
Costs of charitable activities      
   Employee benefits expenses      
      Accommodation  11,400   30,318   -     212   21,766  
      Central provident fund contribution  261,153   311,434   92,436   2,664   284,740  
      Medical expenses  13,070   14,479   3,921   108   12,444  
      Foreign workers levy  57,595   49,779   2,390   585   49,292  
      Staff salary, overtime and bonuses  2,278,090   2,380,969   614,599   21,271   2,164,639  
      Recruitment expenses  400   943   191   14   1,076  
      Training and seminar  31,773   24,202   5,580   183   21,293  
      Staff welfare  29,329   27,558   4,075   249   24,330  
      Other employee benefit expenses  65,547   190,031   12,311   1,244   147,263  

      
   Resident Related expenses      
      Doctor’s retainer fees  2,575   10,401   -     125   9,471  
      Festival celebration  15,374   1,998   1,861   48   3,725  
      Groceries  317,709   87,849   36,487   651   70,860  
      Occupational therapy expenses  27,540   70,152   -     319   42,044  
      Physiotherapy expenses  45,660   72,706   -     485   54,421  
      Resident expenses  97,545   23,349   177,049   415   34,674  
      SASCO Charity Assistance to clients  165,638   42,183   -     212   29,531  

  3,420,398   3,338,351   950,900   28,785   2,971,569  
Costs of governance activities      
      Audit fee  28,360   25,420   7,386   177   20,657  
      Professional charges  22,374   20,505   7,687   172   18,113  

  50,734   45,925   15,073   349   38,770  
Other expenditures      
   Depreciation expense      
      Depreciation of plant and equipment  3,898   3,481   9,360   29   3,066  
      Amortization of intangible asset  75,661   166,937   72,389   751   106,961  
      Depreciation of right-of-use assets  248,050   72,665   96,714   601   63,736  

      
      Other expenses  743,530   399,536   181,842   4,072   406,487  

  1,071,139   642,619   360,305   5,453   580,250  
      

Finance costs  5,394   1,472   884   12   1,287  
Total expenditures  4,547,665   4,028,367   1,327,162   34,599   3,591,876  

      
Deficit for the year  (1,291,629)  (992,522)  (318,056)  (11,596)  (757,620) 
Transfer from general fund  1,291,629   992,522   318,056   11,596   757,620  
At 31 December 2022  -     -     -     -     -    
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10 Restricted funds (Cont’d) 
 

2022      
     Ministry of 
 Evergreen Ministry of Ministry of Ministry of Health (“MOH”) 
 Place, Home Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Integrated Home 
 @ HongSan Centre-based Active Ageing Senior Supportive and Day Care 
 Fund Services Fund Centre Fund Living (“SSL”) Fund  (“IHDC”) Fund 
  (Note A) (Note B)   
  $ $ $ $ $ 

Income:      
Voluntary income:      
   Donations  364,050   8,654   71,870   84   9,759  
   Funding from Ministry of Social and       
       Development  1,129,385   -     -     -     -    
   Funding from Ministry of Health   -     1,032,084   141,093   -     -    
   Agency for Integrated Care subsidy  28,852   92,363   318,510   14,541   1,447,722  
   Funding under CST from AIC  825,536   590,990   145,858   6,390   482,897  
   Funding under CCSE from Agency       
      of Integrated Care  -     611,597   -     -     292,430  
   Rental subvention from Ministry of       
        Health and Ministry of Social and      
        Family Development  283,999   28,320   62,416   1,216   73,823  

      
Income from charitable activities:      
   Income from residents  338,408   446,703   94,629   (1,297)  309,267  

      
Other income  285,806  225,134   174,730   2,069   218,358 
Total income  3,256,036   3,035,845   1,009,106   23,003   2,834,256  
Expenditures      
Costs of charitable activities      
   Employee benefits expenses      
      Accommodation  11,400   30,318   -     212   21,766  
      Central provident fund contribution  261,153   311,434   92,436   2,664   284,740  
      Medical expenses  13,070   14,479   3,921   108   12,444  
      Foreign workers levy  57,595   49,779   2,390   585   49,292  
      Staff salary, overtime and bonuses  2,278,090   2,380,969   614,599   21,271   2,164,639  
      Recruitment expenses  400   943   191   14   1,076  
      Training and seminar  31,773   24,202   5,580   183   21,293  
      Staff welfare  29,329   27,558   4,075   249   24,330  
      Other employee benefit expenses  65,547   190,031   12,311   1,244   147,263  

      
   Resident Related expenses      
      Doctor’s retainer fees  2,575   10,401   -     125   9,471  
      Festival celebration  15,374   1,998   1,861   48   3,725  
      Groceries  317,709   87,849   36,487   651   70,860  
      Occupational therapy expenses  27,540   70,152   -     319   42,044  
      Physiotherapy expenses  45,660   72,706   -     485   54,421  
      Resident expenses  97,545   23,349   177,049   415   34,674  
      SASCO Charity Assistance to clients  165,638   42,183   -     212   29,531  

  3,420,398   3,338,351   950,900   28,785   2,971,569  
Costs of governance activities      
      Audit fee  28,360   25,420   7,386   177   20,657  
      Professional charges  22,374   20,505   7,687   172   18,113  

  50,734   45,925   15,073   349   38,770  
Other expenditures      
   Depreciation expense      
      Depreciation of plant and equipment  3,898   3,481   9,360   29   3,066  
      Amortization of intangible asset  75,661   166,937   72,389   751   106,961  
      Depreciation of right-of-use assets  248,050   72,665   96,714   601   63,736  

      
      Other expenses  743,530   399,536   181,842   4,072   406,487  

  1,071,139   642,619   360,305   5,453   580,250  
      

Finance costs  5,394   1,472   884   12   1,287  
Total expenditures  4,547,665   4,028,367   1,327,162   34,599   3,591,876  

      
Deficit for the year  (1,291,629)  (992,522)  (318,056)  (11,596)  (757,620) 
Transfer from general fund  1,291,629   992,522   318,056   11,596   757,620  
At 31 December 2022  -     -     -     -     -    
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10 Restricted funds (Cont’d) 
 

2022      
     Ministry of 
 Evergreen Ministry of Ministry of Ministry of Health (“MOH”) 
 Place, Home Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Integrated Home 
 @ HongSan Centre-based Active Ageing Senior Supportive and Day Care 
 Fund Services Fund Centre Fund Living (“SSL”) Fund  (“IHDC”) Fund 
  (Note A) (Note B)   
  $ $ $ $ $ 

Income:      
Voluntary income:      
   Donations  364,050   8,654   71,870   84   9,759  
   Funding from Ministry of Social and       
       Development  1,129,385   -     -     -     -    
   Funding from Ministry of Health   -     1,032,084   141,093   -     -    
   Agency for Integrated Care subsidy  28,852   92,363   318,510   14,541   1,447,722  
   Funding under CST from AIC  825,536   590,990   145,858   6,390   482,897  
   Funding under CCSE from Agency       
      of Integrated Care  -     611,597   -     -     292,430  
   Rental subvention from Ministry of       
        Health and Ministry of Social and      
        Family Development  283,999   28,320   62,416   1,216   73,823  

      
Income from charitable activities:      
   Income from residents  338,408   446,703   94,629   (1,297)  309,267  

      
Other income  285,806  225,134   174,730   2,069   218,358 
Total income  3,256,036   3,035,845   1,009,106   23,003   2,834,256  
Expenditures      
Costs of charitable activities      
   Employee benefits expenses      
      Accommodation  11,400   30,318   -     212   21,766  
      Central provident fund contribution  261,153   311,434   92,436   2,664   284,740  
      Medical expenses  13,070   14,479   3,921   108   12,444  
      Foreign workers levy  57,595   49,779   2,390   585   49,292  
      Staff salary, overtime and bonuses  2,278,090   2,380,969   614,599   21,271   2,164,639  
      Recruitment expenses  400   943   191   14   1,076  
      Training and seminar  31,773   24,202   5,580   183   21,293  
      Staff welfare  29,329   27,558   4,075   249   24,330  
      Other employee benefit expenses  65,547   190,031   12,311   1,244   147,263  

      
   Resident Related expenses      
      Doctor’s retainer fees  2,575   10,401   -     125   9,471  
      Festival celebration  15,374   1,998   1,861   48   3,725  
      Groceries  317,709   87,849   36,487   651   70,860  
      Occupational therapy expenses  27,540   70,152   -     319   42,044  
      Physiotherapy expenses  45,660   72,706   -     485   54,421  
      Resident expenses  97,545   23,349   177,049   415   34,674  
      SASCO Charity Assistance to clients  165,638   42,183   -     212   29,531  

  3,420,398   3,338,351   950,900   28,785   2,971,569  
Costs of governance activities      
      Audit fee  28,360   25,420   7,386   177   20,657  
      Professional charges  22,374   20,505   7,687   172   18,113  

  50,734   45,925   15,073   349   38,770  
Other expenditures      
   Depreciation expense      
      Depreciation of plant and equipment  3,898   3,481   9,360   29   3,066  
      Amortization of intangible asset  75,661   166,937   72,389   751   106,961  
      Depreciation of right-of-use assets  248,050   72,665   96,714   601   63,736  

      
      Other expenses  743,530   399,536   181,842   4,072   406,487  

  1,071,139   642,619   360,305   5,453   580,250  
      

Finance costs  5,394   1,472   884   12   1,287  
Total expenditures  4,547,665   4,028,367   1,327,162   34,599   3,591,876  

      
Deficit for the year  (1,291,629)  (992,522)  (318,056)  (11,596)  (757,620) 
Transfer from general fund  1,291,629   992,522   318,056   11,596   757,620  
At 31 December 2022  -     -     -     -     -    
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10 Restricted funds (Cont’d)  
 

Note A       
       
 Ministry of Ministry of Ministry of Ministry of Ministry of Ministry of 
 Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) 
 Community Maintenance Dementia Day Maintenance Centre-based Centre-based 
 Rehabilitation Exercise Care Day Care Nursing Services Fund 
  $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Income:       
Voluntary income:       
   Donations  309   2,673   5,470   200   2   8,654  
   Funding from Ministry of Health   35,657   351,239   622,846   22,122   220   1,032,084  
   Agency for Integrated Care subsidy  -     54,559   37,804   -     -     92,363  
   Funding under CST from AIC  27,201   241,671   304,439   17,614   65   590,990  
   Funding under CCSE from Agency of 
Integrated Care 

 22,538   225,240   349,104   14,594   121   611,597  

   Rental subvention from Ministry of        
        Health and Ministry of Social and       
        Family Development  1,151   9,427   16,989   746   7   28,320  

       
Income from charitable activities:       
   Income from residents  14,658   163,775   257,763   10,452   55   446,703  

       
Other income  8,687   78,167   132,605   5,625   50   225,134  
Total income  110,201   1,126,751   1,727,020   71,353   520   3,035,845  
Expenditures       
Costs of charitable activities       
   Employee benefits expenses       
      Accommodation  907   12,467   16,351   588   5   30,318  
      Central provident fund contribution  11,932   110,884   180,826   7,727   65   311,434  
      Medical expenses  616   5,052   8,409   399   3   14,479  
      Foreign workers levy  1,498   19,689   27,612   970   10   49,779  
      Staff salary, overtime and bonuses  91,019   866,104   1,364,430   58,940   476   2,380,969  
      Recruitment expenses  27   375   523   18   -     943  
      Training and seminar  1,091   8,217   14,183   707   4   24,202  
      Staff welfare  914   10,552   15,495   592   5   27,558  
      Other employee benefit expenses  7,194   70,540   107,602   4,659   36   190,031  

       
   Resident Related expenses       
      Doctor’s retainer fees  111   4,791   5,426   72   1   10,401  
      Festival celebration  66   586   1,301   44   1   1,998  
      Groceries  3,200   33,102   49,458   2,072   17   87,849  
      Occupational therapy expenses  2,807   27,610   37,907   1,818   10   70,152  
      Physiotherapy expenses  4,150   25,241   40,617   2,687   11   72,706  
      Resident expenses  1,029   7,068   14,580   666   6   23,349  
      SASCO Charity Assistance to clients  1,202   16,407   23,788   778   8   42,183  

  127,763   1,218,685   1,908,508   82,737   658   3,338,351  
Costs of governance activities       
      Audit fee  917   9,369   14,535   594   5   25,420  
      Professional charges  761   7,499   11,748   493   4   20,505  

  1,678   16,868   26,283   1,087   9   45,925  
Other expenditures       
   Depreciation expense       
      Depreciation of plant and equipment  130   1,269   1,996   85   1   3,481  
      Amortization of intangible asset  2,806   70,304   91,980   1,817   30   166,937  
      Depreciation of right-of-use assets  2,731   26,529   41,623   1,768   14   72,665  

       
      Other expenses  16,003   137,726   235,356   10,363   88   399,536  

  21,670   235,828   370,955   14,033   133   642,619  
       

Finance costs  56   538   842   36   -   1,472  
Total expenditures  151,167   1,471,919   2,306,588   97,893   800   4,028,367  

       
Deficit for the year (40,966)  (345,168)  (579,568)  (26,540)  (280)  (992,522)  
Transfer from general fund  40,966   345,168   579,568   26,540   280   992,522  
At 31 December 2022  -     -     -     -     -     -    
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10 Restricted funds (Cont’d)  
 

Note A       
       
 Ministry of Ministry of Ministry of Ministry of Ministry of Ministry of 
 Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) 
 Community Maintenance Dementia Day Maintenance Centre-based Centre-based 
 Rehabilitation Exercise Care Day Care Nursing Services Fund 
  $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Income:       
Voluntary income:       
   Donations  309   2,673   5,470   200   2   8,654  
   Funding from Ministry of Health   35,657   351,239   622,846   22,122   220   1,032,084  
   Agency for Integrated Care subsidy  -     54,559   37,804   -     -     92,363  
   Funding under CST from AIC  27,201   241,671   304,439   17,614   65   590,990  
   Funding under CCSE from Agency of 
Integrated Care 

 22,538   225,240   349,104   14,594   121   611,597  

   Rental subvention from Ministry of        
        Health and Ministry of Social and       
        Family Development  1,151   9,427   16,989   746   7   28,320  

       
Income from charitable activities:       
   Income from residents  14,658   163,775   257,763   10,452   55   446,703  

       
Other income  8,687   78,167   132,605   5,625   50   225,134  
Total income  110,201   1,126,751   1,727,020   71,353   520   3,035,845  
Expenditures       
Costs of charitable activities       
   Employee benefits expenses       
      Accommodation  907   12,467   16,351   588   5   30,318  
      Central provident fund contribution  11,932   110,884   180,826   7,727   65   311,434  
      Medical expenses  616   5,052   8,409   399   3   14,479  
      Foreign workers levy  1,498   19,689   27,612   970   10   49,779  
      Staff salary, overtime and bonuses  91,019   866,104   1,364,430   58,940   476   2,380,969  
      Recruitment expenses  27   375   523   18   -     943  
      Training and seminar  1,091   8,217   14,183   707   4   24,202  
      Staff welfare  914   10,552   15,495   592   5   27,558  
      Other employee benefit expenses  7,194   70,540   107,602   4,659   36   190,031  

       
   Resident Related expenses       
      Doctor’s retainer fees  111   4,791   5,426   72   1   10,401  
      Festival celebration  66   586   1,301   44   1   1,998  
      Groceries  3,200   33,102   49,458   2,072   17   87,849  
      Occupational therapy expenses  2,807   27,610   37,907   1,818   10   70,152  
      Physiotherapy expenses  4,150   25,241   40,617   2,687   11   72,706  
      Resident expenses  1,029   7,068   14,580   666   6   23,349  
      SASCO Charity Assistance to clients  1,202   16,407   23,788   778   8   42,183  

  127,763   1,218,685   1,908,508   82,737   658   3,338,351  
Costs of governance activities       
      Audit fee  917   9,369   14,535   594   5   25,420  
      Professional charges  761   7,499   11,748   493   4   20,505  

  1,678   16,868   26,283   1,087   9   45,925  
Other expenditures       
   Depreciation expense       
      Depreciation of plant and equipment  130   1,269   1,996   85   1   3,481  
      Amortization of intangible asset  2,806   70,304   91,980   1,817   30   166,937  
      Depreciation of right-of-use assets  2,731   26,529   41,623   1,768   14   72,665  

       
      Other expenses  16,003   137,726   235,356   10,363   88   399,536  

  21,670   235,828   370,955   14,033   133   642,619  
       

Finance costs  56   538   842   36   -   1,472  
Total expenditures  151,167   1,471,919   2,306,588   97,893   800   4,028,367  

       
Deficit for the year (40,966)  (345,168)  (579,568)  (26,540)  (280)  (992,522)  
Transfer from general fund  40,966   345,168   579,568   26,540   280   992,522  
At 31 December 2022  -     -     -     -     -     -    

 
 

SASCO Senior Citizens’ Home 41 
Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 
 

 

10 Restricted funds (Cont’d)  
 

Note A       
       
 Ministry of Ministry of Ministry of Ministry of Ministry of Ministry of 
 Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) 
 Community Maintenance Dementia Day Maintenance Centre-based Centre-based 
 Rehabilitation Exercise Care Day Care Nursing Services Fund 
  $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Income:       
Voluntary income:       
   Donations  309   2,673   5,470   200   2   8,654  
   Funding from Ministry of Health   35,657   351,239   622,846   22,122   220   1,032,084  
   Agency for Integrated Care subsidy  -     54,559   37,804   -     -     92,363  
   Funding under CST from AIC  27,201   241,671   304,439   17,614   65   590,990  
   Funding under CCSE from Agency of 
Integrated Care 

 22,538   225,240   349,104   14,594   121   611,597  

   Rental subvention from Ministry of        
        Health and Ministry of Social and       
        Family Development  1,151   9,427   16,989   746   7   28,320  

       
Income from charitable activities:       
   Income from residents  14,658   163,775   257,763   10,452   55   446,703  

       
Other income  8,687   78,167   132,605   5,625   50   225,134  
Total income  110,201   1,126,751   1,727,020   71,353   520   3,035,845  
Expenditures       
Costs of charitable activities       
   Employee benefits expenses       
      Accommodation  907   12,467   16,351   588   5   30,318  
      Central provident fund contribution  11,932   110,884   180,826   7,727   65   311,434  
      Medical expenses  616   5,052   8,409   399   3   14,479  
      Foreign workers levy  1,498   19,689   27,612   970   10   49,779  
      Staff salary, overtime and bonuses  91,019   866,104   1,364,430   58,940   476   2,380,969  
      Recruitment expenses  27   375   523   18   -     943  
      Training and seminar  1,091   8,217   14,183   707   4   24,202  
      Staff welfare  914   10,552   15,495   592   5   27,558  
      Other employee benefit expenses  7,194   70,540   107,602   4,659   36   190,031  

       
   Resident Related expenses       
      Doctor’s retainer fees  111   4,791   5,426   72   1   10,401  
      Festival celebration  66   586   1,301   44   1   1,998  
      Groceries  3,200   33,102   49,458   2,072   17   87,849  
      Occupational therapy expenses  2,807   27,610   37,907   1,818   10   70,152  
      Physiotherapy expenses  4,150   25,241   40,617   2,687   11   72,706  
      Resident expenses  1,029   7,068   14,580   666   6   23,349  
      SASCO Charity Assistance to clients  1,202   16,407   23,788   778   8   42,183  

  127,763   1,218,685   1,908,508   82,737   658   3,338,351  
Costs of governance activities       
      Audit fee  917   9,369   14,535   594   5   25,420  
      Professional charges  761   7,499   11,748   493   4   20,505  

  1,678   16,868   26,283   1,087   9   45,925  
Other expenditures       
   Depreciation expense       
      Depreciation of plant and equipment  130   1,269   1,996   85   1   3,481  
      Amortization of intangible asset  2,806   70,304   91,980   1,817   30   166,937  
      Depreciation of right-of-use assets  2,731   26,529   41,623   1,768   14   72,665  

       
      Other expenses  16,003   137,726   235,356   10,363   88   399,536  

  21,670   235,828   370,955   14,033   133   642,619  
       

Finance costs  56   538   842   36   -   1,472  
Total expenditures  151,167   1,471,919   2,306,588   97,893   800   4,028,367  

       
Deficit for the year (40,966)  (345,168)  (579,568)  (26,540)  (280)  (992,522)  
Transfer from general fund  40,966   345,168   579,568   26,540   280   992,522  
At 31 December 2022  -     -     -     -     -     -    
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SASCO Senior Citizens’ Home 42 
Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 
 

 

10 Restricted funds (Cont’d)  
 

Note B     
 Ministry of Ministry of Ministry of  
 Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Ministry of 
 Active Ageing Active Ageing Active Ageing Health (“MOH”) 
 Centre SASCO Centre SASCO Centre SASCO Active Ageing 
 @ Khatib Fund @ Compassvale Fund @ WestCoast Fund Centre Fund 
  $ $ $ $ 

Income:     
Voluntary income:     
   Donations  46,877   7,785   17,208   71,870  
   Funding from Ministry of Health   29,988   29,989   81,116   141,093  
   Agency for Integrated Care subsidy  159,548   158,962   -     318,510  
   Funding under CST from AIC  81,234   64,624   -     145,858  
   Rental subvention from Ministry of      
        Health and Ministry of Social and     
        Family Development  33,427   28,756   233   62,416  

     
Income from charitable activities:     
   Income from residents  87,353   6,904   372   94,629  

     
Other income  133,851   34,195   6,684   174,730 
Total income  572,278   331,215   105,613  1,009,106  
Expenditures     
Costs of charitable activities     
   Employee benefits expenses     
      Central provident fund contribution  47,018   33,194   12,224   92,436  
      Medical expenses  1,923   1,577   421   3,921  
      Foreign workers levy  -     2,390   -     2,390  
      Staff salary, overtime and bonuses  312,450   227,344   74,805   614,599  
      Recruitment expenses  52   130   9   191  
      Training and seminar  2,794   2,313   473   5,580  
      Staff welfare  2,478   1,423   174   4,075  
      Other employee benefit expenses  6,930   4,357   1,024   12,311  

     
   Resident Related expenses     
      Festival celebration  338   841   682   1,861  
      Groceries  24,498   3,021   8,968   36,487  
      Resident expenses  116,774   46,947   13,328   177,049  

  515,255   323,537   112,108   950,900  
Costs of governance activities     
      Audit fee  4,190   2,424   772   7,386  
      Professional charges  4,300   2,677   710   7,687  

  8,490   5,101   1,482   15,073  
Other expenditures     
   Depreciation expense     
      Depreciation of plant and equipment  4,402   4,113   845   9,360  
      Amortization of intangible asset  33,090   37,086   2,213   72,389  
      Depreciation of right-of-use assets  53,097   41,138   2,479   96,714  

     
      Other expenses  110,989   62,019   8,834   181,842  

  201,578   144,356   14,371   360,305  
     

Finance costs  486   350   48   884  
Total expenditures  725,809   473,344   128,009   1,327,162  

     
Deficit for the year (153,531)  (142,129)  (22,396)  (318,056)  
Transfer from general fund  153,531   142,129   22,396   318,056  
At 31 December 2022  -   -     -     -    
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Notes to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 
 
 

 

10 Restricted funds (Cont’d)  
 

2021        Ministry of Ministry of  Ministry of 
    Ministry of  Ministry of Health Health Ministry of Health  
  Ministry of Ministry of Health Ministry of Health (“MOH”) (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”)  
 Evergreen Health Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Senior Activity Senior Activity (“MOH”) Integrated  
 Place, Home (“MOH”) (“MOH”) Dementia Day (“MOH”) Centre-based Centre SASCO Centre SASCO Senior  Home and Day  
 @ HongSan Active Maintenance Care Maintenance Services @ Khatib @ Compassvale Supportive Care (“IHDC”)  
 Fund Rehabilitation Exercise (Note A) Day Care Fund Fund Fund Living (“SSL”) Fund 

 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Income:           
Voluntary income:           
   Donations 238,537 246 248 4,213 1,817 6,524 16,450 527 54 7,748 
   Funding from Ministry of Social and            
    Development 1,155,227 - - - - - - - - - 
   Funding from Ministry of Health  - 13,251 17,431 753,758 361,143 1,145,583 109,957 109,957 - - 
   Agency for Integrated Care subsidy  - -  - - 675 675 8,025 1,208,882 
   Funding under CST from AIC 814,379 13,465 13,560 323,420 187,734 538,179 87,640 78,139 2,545 416,279 
   Funding under CCSE from Agency of Integrated Care - 3,144 3,166 110,657 51,819 168,786 - - - 90,758 
   Rental subvention from Ministry of            
      Health and Ministry of Social and           
      Family Development 290,878 430 432 23,534 5,932 30,328 - - 120 35,785 
           
Income from charitable activities:           
   Income from residents 397,352 12,159 8,122 326,700 148,368 495,349 71,532 1,603 329 357,690 
           
Other income 287,420 5,672 5,712 209,746 104,511        325,641 143,953 54,183 1,422 278,844 
Total income 3,183,793 48,367 48,671 1,752,028 861,324 2,710,390 430,207 245,084 12,495 2,395,986 
           
Expenditures           
Costs of charitable activities           
   Employee benefits expenses           
      Accommodation 11,893 408 410 18,561 11,261 30,640  -     -    136 23,117 
      Central provident fund contribution 222,621 5,102 5,138 174,600 82,643 267,483  38,150   30,162  1,291 245,524 
      Medical expenses 8,563 181 183 5,202 2,460 8,026  1,527   594  39 7,290 
      Foreign workers levy 55,695 632 636 27,991 16,336 45,595  -     -    224 37,174 
      Staff salary, overtime and bonuses 2,153,300 42,259 42,557 1,441,847 705,246 2,231,909  242,995   187,735  10,099 1,953,388 
      Recruitment expenses 1,283 21 22 685 342 1,070  119   93  4 813 
      Training and seminar 11,378 354 355 9,862 5,629 16,200  3,417   2,588  49 10,624 
      Staff welfare 22,012 468 472 16,232 8,589 25,761  1,833   1,340  114 21,217 
      Other employee benefit expenses 10,261 230 231 7,714 3,843 12,018  800  688  57 10,621 
           
   Resident Related expenses           
      Database management expenses - - - - - -  -     -     -   -  
      Art therapy expenses - - - - - -  -     -     -   -  
      Doctor’s retainer fees 910 84 84 2,270 483 2,921  -     -     2,090   5,991  
      Festival celebration 19,058 5 5 350 47 407  394   -     14   1,564  
      Groceries 288,383 1,538 1,550 53,555 28,277 84,920  18,099   1,802   318   65,391  
      Occupational therapy expenses 42,805 1,401 1,411 43,740 24,994 71,546  -     -     213   46,979  
      Physiotherapy expenses 45,880 1,882 1,895 43,887 20,602 68,266  -     -     185   49,654  
      Resident expenses 127,636 521 525 18,423 9,084 28,553  93,269   26,945   253   34,862  
      Subsidy of resident rental expenses 199,204 545 548 23,665 13,374 38,132  -     -     176   30,964  
 3,220,882 55,631 56,022 1,888,584 933,210 2,933,447  400,603   251,947  15,262 2,545,173 
Costs of governance activities           
      Audit fee  26,739   419   422   15,716   7,849   24,406   3,237   2,516   96   20,006  
      Board meeting expenses  -     -   -   -   -   -     -     -     -   -  
      Professional charges  9,742   148   149   25,987   13,321   39,605   1,390   1,110   42   24,163  
 36,481 567 571  41,703   21,170   64,011   4,627   3,626   138   44,169  
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10 Restricted funds (Cont’d)  
 

2021        Ministry of Ministry of  Ministry of 
    Ministry of  Ministry of Health Health Ministry of Health  
  Ministry of Ministry of Health Ministry of Health (“MOH”) (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”)  
 Evergreen Health Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Senior Activity Senior Activity (“MOH”) Integrated  
 Place, Home (“MOH”) (“MOH”) Dementia Day (“MOH”) Centre-based Centre SASCO Centre SASCO Senior  Home and Day  
 @ HongSan Active Maintenance Care Maintenance Services @ Khatib @ Compassvale Supportive Care (“IHDC”)  
 Fund Rehabilitation Exercise (Note A) Day Care Fund Fund Fund Living (“SSL”) Fund 

 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Income:           
Voluntary income:           
   Donations 238,537 246 248 4,213 1,817 6,524 16,450 527 54 7,748 
   Funding from Ministry of Social and            
    Development 1,155,227 - - - - - - - - - 
   Funding from Ministry of Health  - 13,251 17,431 753,758 361,143 1,145,583 109,957 109,957 - - 
   Agency for Integrated Care subsidy  - -  - - 675 675 8,025 1,208,882 
   Funding under CST from AIC 814,379 13,465 13,560 323,420 187,734 538,179 87,640 78,139 2,545 416,279 
   Funding under CCSE from Agency of Integrated Care - 3,144 3,166 110,657 51,819 168,786 - - - 90,758 
   Rental subvention from Ministry of            
      Health and Ministry of Social and           
      Family Development 290,878 430 432 23,534 5,932 30,328 - - 120 35,785 
           
Income from charitable activities:           
   Income from residents 397,352 12,159 8,122 326,700 148,368 495,349 71,532 1,603 329 357,690 
           
Other income 287,420 5,672 5,712 209,746 104,511        325,641 143,953 54,183 1,422 278,844 
Total income 3,183,793 48,367 48,671 1,752,028 861,324 2,710,390 430,207 245,084 12,495 2,395,986 
           
Expenditures           
Costs of charitable activities           
   Employee benefits expenses           
      Accommodation 11,893 408 410 18,561 11,261 30,640  -     -    136 23,117 
      Central provident fund contribution 222,621 5,102 5,138 174,600 82,643 267,483  38,150   30,162  1,291 245,524 
      Medical expenses 8,563 181 183 5,202 2,460 8,026  1,527   594  39 7,290 
      Foreign workers levy 55,695 632 636 27,991 16,336 45,595  -     -    224 37,174 
      Staff salary, overtime and bonuses 2,153,300 42,259 42,557 1,441,847 705,246 2,231,909  242,995   187,735  10,099 1,953,388 
      Recruitment expenses 1,283 21 22 685 342 1,070  119   93  4 813 
      Training and seminar 11,378 354 355 9,862 5,629 16,200  3,417   2,588  49 10,624 
      Staff welfare 22,012 468 472 16,232 8,589 25,761  1,833   1,340  114 21,217 
      Other employee benefit expenses 10,261 230 231 7,714 3,843 12,018  800  688  57 10,621 
           
   Resident Related expenses           
      Database management expenses - - - - - -  -     -     -   -  
      Art therapy expenses - - - - - -  -     -     -   -  
      Doctor’s retainer fees 910 84 84 2,270 483 2,921  -     -     2,090   5,991  
      Festival celebration 19,058 5 5 350 47 407  394   -     14   1,564  
      Groceries 288,383 1,538 1,550 53,555 28,277 84,920  18,099   1,802   318   65,391  
      Occupational therapy expenses 42,805 1,401 1,411 43,740 24,994 71,546  -     -     213   46,979  
      Physiotherapy expenses 45,880 1,882 1,895 43,887 20,602 68,266  -     -     185   49,654  
      Resident expenses 127,636 521 525 18,423 9,084 28,553  93,269   26,945   253   34,862  
      Subsidy of resident rental expenses 199,204 545 548 23,665 13,374 38,132  -     -     176   30,964  
 3,220,882 55,631 56,022 1,888,584 933,210 2,933,447  400,603   251,947  15,262 2,545,173 
Costs of governance activities           
      Audit fee  26,739   419   422   15,716   7,849   24,406   3,237   2,516   96   20,006  
      Board meeting expenses  -     -   -   -   -   -     -     -     -   -  
      Professional charges  9,742   148   149   25,987   13,321   39,605   1,390   1,110   42   24,163  
 36,481 567 571  41,703   21,170   64,011   4,627   3,626   138   44,169  
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10 Restricted funds (Cont’d)  
 

2021        Ministry of Ministry of  Ministry of 
    Ministry of  Ministry of Health Health Ministry of Health  
  Ministry of Ministry of Health Ministry of Health (“MOH”) (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”)  
 Evergreen Health Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Senior Activity Senior Activity (“MOH”) Integrated  
 Place, Home (“MOH”) (“MOH”) Dementia Day (“MOH”) Centre-based Centre SASCO Centre SASCO Senior  Home and Day  
 @ HongSan Active Maintenance Care Maintenance Services @ Khatib @ Compassvale Supportive Care (“IHDC”)  
 Fund Rehabilitation Exercise (Note A) Day Care Fund Fund Fund Living (“SSL”) Fund 

 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Income:           
Voluntary income:           
   Donations 238,537 246 248 4,213 1,817 6,524 16,450 527 54 7,748 
   Funding from Ministry of Social and            
    Development 1,155,227 - - - - - - - - - 
   Funding from Ministry of Health  - 13,251 17,431 753,758 361,143 1,145,583 109,957 109,957 - - 
   Agency for Integrated Care subsidy  - -  - - 675 675 8,025 1,208,882 
   Funding under CST from AIC 814,379 13,465 13,560 323,420 187,734 538,179 87,640 78,139 2,545 416,279 
   Funding under CCSE from Agency of Integrated Care - 3,144 3,166 110,657 51,819 168,786 - - - 90,758 
   Rental subvention from Ministry of            
      Health and Ministry of Social and           
      Family Development 290,878 430 432 23,534 5,932 30,328 - - 120 35,785 
           
Income from charitable activities:           
   Income from residents 397,352 12,159 8,122 326,700 148,368 495,349 71,532 1,603 329 357,690 
           
Other income 287,420 5,672 5,712 209,746 104,511        325,641 143,953 54,183 1,422 278,844 
Total income 3,183,793 48,367 48,671 1,752,028 861,324 2,710,390 430,207 245,084 12,495 2,395,986 
           
Expenditures           
Costs of charitable activities           
   Employee benefits expenses           
      Accommodation 11,893 408 410 18,561 11,261 30,640  -     -    136 23,117 
      Central provident fund contribution 222,621 5,102 5,138 174,600 82,643 267,483  38,150   30,162  1,291 245,524 
      Medical expenses 8,563 181 183 5,202 2,460 8,026  1,527   594  39 7,290 
      Foreign workers levy 55,695 632 636 27,991 16,336 45,595  -     -    224 37,174 
      Staff salary, overtime and bonuses 2,153,300 42,259 42,557 1,441,847 705,246 2,231,909  242,995   187,735  10,099 1,953,388 
      Recruitment expenses 1,283 21 22 685 342 1,070  119   93  4 813 
      Training and seminar 11,378 354 355 9,862 5,629 16,200  3,417   2,588  49 10,624 
      Staff welfare 22,012 468 472 16,232 8,589 25,761  1,833   1,340  114 21,217 
      Other employee benefit expenses 10,261 230 231 7,714 3,843 12,018  800  688  57 10,621 
           
   Resident Related expenses           
      Database management expenses - - - - - -  -     -     -   -  
      Art therapy expenses - - - - - -  -     -     -   -  
      Doctor’s retainer fees 910 84 84 2,270 483 2,921  -     -     2,090   5,991  
      Festival celebration 19,058 5 5 350 47 407  394   -     14   1,564  
      Groceries 288,383 1,538 1,550 53,555 28,277 84,920  18,099   1,802   318   65,391  
      Occupational therapy expenses 42,805 1,401 1,411 43,740 24,994 71,546  -     -     213   46,979  
      Physiotherapy expenses 45,880 1,882 1,895 43,887 20,602 68,266  -     -     185   49,654  
      Resident expenses 127,636 521 525 18,423 9,084 28,553  93,269   26,945   253   34,862  
      Subsidy of resident rental expenses 199,204 545 548 23,665 13,374 38,132  -     -     176   30,964  
 3,220,882 55,631 56,022 1,888,584 933,210 2,933,447  400,603   251,947  15,262 2,545,173 
Costs of governance activities           
      Audit fee  26,739   419   422   15,716   7,849   24,406   3,237   2,516   96   20,006  
      Board meeting expenses  -     -   -   -   -   -     -     -     -   -  
      Professional charges  9,742   148   149   25,987   13,321   39,605   1,390   1,110   42   24,163  
 36,481 567 571  41,703   21,170   64,011   4,627   3,626   138   44,169  
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 Place, Home (“MOH”) (“MOH”) Dementia Day (“MOH”) Centre-based Centre SASCO Centre SASCO Senior  Home and Day  
 @ HongSan Active Maintenance Care Maintenance Services @ Khatib @ Compassvale Supportive Care (“IHDC”)  
 Fund Rehabilitation Exercise (Note A) Day Care Fund Fund Fund Living (“SSL”) Fund 
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Total income 3,183,793 48,367 48,671 1,752,028 861,324 2,710,390 430,207 245,084 12,495 2,395,986 
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10 Restricted funds (Cont’d)  
 

       Ministry of Ministry of  Ministry of 
2021     Ministry of  Ministry of Health Health Ministry of Health  
  Ministry of Ministry of Health Ministry of Health (“MOH”) (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”)  
 Evergreen Health Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Senior Activity Senior Activity (“MOH”) Integrated  
 Place, Home (“MOH”) (“MOH”) Dementia Day (“MOH”) Centre-based Centre SASCO Centre SASCO Senior  Home and Day  
 @ HongSan Active Maintenance Care Maintenance Services @ Khatib @ Compassvale Supportive Care (“IHDC”)  
 Fund Rehabilitation Exercise (Note A) Day Care Fund Fund Fund Living (“SSL”) Fund 
 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Other expenditures           
   Depreciation expense           
      Depreciation of plant and equipment 71,783 1,007 1,013 42,037 25,644 69,701 41,994 35,538 367 56,859 
      Amortization of intangible asset 359 5 5 210 128 348 1,130 1,098 3 284 
      Depreciation of right-of-use assets 230,743 1,093 1,101 39,433 19,408 61,035  50,723   38,614  287 54,278 
           
      Other expenses 672,852 5,506 5,546  228,611   118,470   358,133   80,931   49,448   2,330   361,998  
 975,737 7,611 7,665  310,291   163,650   489,217   174,778   124,698   2,987   473,419  
           
Finance costs 2,337 32 32 1,142 564 1,770  2,136   (292) 8 1,568 
Total expenditures 4,235,437 63,841 64,290 2,241,720 1,118,594 3,488,445  582,144   379,979  18,395 3,064,329 
           
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year (1,051,644) (15,474) (15,619) (489,692) (257,270) (778,055)  (151,937)  (134,895) (5,900) (668,343) 
Transfer from general fund 1,051,644 15,474 15,619 489,692 257,270 778,055  151,937  134,895 5,900 668,343 
Balance as at 31 December 2021  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

           

 
The programme funds that are in deficit amounts as at the end of the year have utilised funding from the general fund and the Home’s programme funds so as to 
keep the programmes running. Deficits in the programme funds come about because there are different funding models for each programme fund and many of 
these programmes are not fully funded. The Home is expected to raise funds and utilise government matching grants to cover the programme expenditure. 

 
Note A:  
The following is the disclosure of the merging of existing programmes under Ministry of Health (“MOH”) centre-based services: 

 
i) The programmes “MOH Dementia Day Care (General)” and “MOH Dementia Day Care (Enhanced)” are merged under the programme “MOH Dementia Day Care”, 

with effect from 1 July 2021.
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10 Restricted funds (Cont’d)  
 

       Ministry of Ministry of  Ministry of 
2021     Ministry of  Ministry of Health Health Ministry of Health  
  Ministry of Ministry of Health Ministry of Health (“MOH”) (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”)  
 Evergreen Health Health (“MOH”) Health (“MOH”) Senior Activity Senior Activity (“MOH”) Integrated  
 Place, Home (“MOH”) (“MOH”) Dementia Day (“MOH”) Centre-based Centre SASCO Centre SASCO Senior  Home and Day  
 @ HongSan Active Maintenance Care Maintenance Services @ Khatib @ Compassvale Supportive Care (“IHDC”)  
 Fund Rehabilitation Exercise (Note A) Day Care Fund Fund Fund Living (“SSL”) Fund 
 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Other expenditures           
   Depreciation expense           
      Depreciation of plant and equipment 71,783 1,007 1,013 42,037 25,644 69,701 41,994 35,538 367 56,859 
      Amortization of intangible asset 359 5 5 210 128 348 1,130 1,098 3 284 
      Depreciation of right-of-use assets 230,743 1,093 1,101 39,433 19,408 61,035  50,723   38,614  287 54,278 
           
      Other expenses 672,852 5,506 5,546  228,611   118,470   358,133   80,931   49,448   2,330   361,998  
 975,737 7,611 7,665  310,291   163,650   489,217   174,778   124,698   2,987   473,419  
           
Finance costs 2,337 32 32 1,142 564 1,770  2,136   (292) 8 1,568 
Total expenditures 4,235,437 63,841 64,290 2,241,720 1,118,594 3,488,445  582,144   379,979  18,395 3,064,329 
           
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year (1,051,644) (15,474) (15,619) (489,692) (257,270) (778,055)  (151,937)  (134,895) (5,900) (668,343) 
Transfer from general fund 1,051,644 15,474 15,619 489,692 257,270 778,055  151,937  134,895 5,900 668,343 
Balance as at 31 December 2021  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

           

 
The programme funds that are in deficit amounts as at the end of the year have utilised funding from the general fund and the Home’s programme funds so as to 
keep the programmes running. Deficits in the programme funds come about because there are different funding models for each programme fund and many of 
these programmes are not fully funded. The Home is expected to raise funds and utilise government matching grants to cover the programme expenditure. 

 
Note A:  
The following is the disclosure of the merging of existing programmes under Ministry of Health (“MOH”) centre-based services: 

 
i) The programmes “MOH Dementia Day Care (General)” and “MOH Dementia Day Care (Enhanced)” are merged under the programme “MOH Dementia Day Care”, 

with effect from 1 July 2021.
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11 Lease liabilities 
 

  2022  2021 
  $  $ 
    
Undiscounted lease payments due:    
-  Year 1 433,284  395,335 
-  Year 2 310,459  271,284 
-  Year 3 2,261  234,859 
-  Year 4  -     2,262 
 746,004  903,740 
Less: future finance charges (7,819)  (9,246) 
Present value of lease liabilities 738,185  894,494 
    
Presented as:    
-  Current 426,899  389,921 
-  Non-current 311,286  504,573 
 738,185  894,494 

 
The Home leases office equipment and office premises (Note 5).  
 
The Home makes monthly lease payments for usage of premises under leasing agreement for operation 
purposes. Leases are negotiated for an average term of 5 years for equipment and 4 years for premises.  
 
Total cash outflows (including interest paid) for all leases in the year amounted to $557,348 (2021: $547,202). 
 
Interest expense on lease liabilities of $9,049 (2021: $7,527) is recognised within “finance costs” in statement of 
financial activities. 
 
The Home’s lease liabilities are secured by the lessors’ title to the leased assets. 
 
There are no externally imposed covenants on these premises’ lease arrangements. 
 
Rental expenses not capitalised in lease liabilities but recognised within “other expenditure” in statement of 
financial activities are set out below: 
 

  2022  2021 
  $  $ 
    
Short-term leases 75,311  99,739 
Leases of low-value assets  300  300 

 
As at 31 December 2022, the Home’s short-term leases and low value assets commitments at the reporting date 
under non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not recognised as liabilities, are as follows: 
 

  2022  2021 
  $  $ 
Short-term leases:    
- Not later than one year 71,776  - 
    
Leases of low value assets:    
- Not later than one year 300  300 
- Later than one year and not later than five years 150  450 
- Later than five years -  - 
 450  750 
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12        Provisions  
 

  2022  2021 
 $  $ 
Non-current    
At 1 January  -  - 
Additions 70,000  - 
At 31 December  70,000  - 

 
Represents provision to be incurred for reinstatement of the office premises upon expiry of the lease 
term. 
 
 
13        Other payables  
 

  2022  2021 
  $  $ 
    
Accruals for staff costs 1,217,764  1,189,875 
Other accruals 152,956  283,716 
Sundry creditors 544,122  287,231 
Payables to a related party 204,496  190,903 
Other residents’ deposits 63,985  75,348 
Deferred income (Note A) 366,309  7,490 
GST payable 21,157  28,620 
 2,570,789  2,063,183 

 
Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average credit term of 30 to 60 days (2021: 30 to 60 
days). 
 
Note A: 
The movement in deferred income is set out as below: 

  2022  2021 
Deferred income $  $ 
    
Balance at beginning of year 7,490  16,387 
Additional for the year 373,998  - 
Amortisation for the year (15,179)  (8,897) 
Balance at end of year 366,309  7,490 

 
Deferred income pertains to plant and equipment funded by CST fund. 
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14 Other income 
 

  2022  2021 
 $  $ 
    
Special employment credit  29,468  30,399 
Training grant 24,913  34,224 
Wage credit scheme 143,293  176,774 
Other government grant 496,246  678,087 
Rental Income 55,224  - 
Miscellaneous income 156,953  171,979 
 906,097  1,091,463 

 
Miscellaneous income mainly consists of income from transport for sending residents to hospital and 
occasional rental of office premises. 
 
 
15 Costs of charitable activities 
 
Cost of charitable activities include: 
 
  2022  2021 
  $  $ 
    
Foreign worker levy 163,811  142,649 
Groceries 498,328  458,912 
Occupational therapy expenses 140,055  161,542 
Physiotherapy expenses 173,222  163,985 
Resident expenses 332,558  311,518 
Database management expenses 1,570,068  1,090,126 
Fund-raising expenses 95,585  19,356 
SASCO charity assistance to clients 75,331  22,252 
    
Employee benefits expenses:    
- Central Provident Fund contribution 982,999  835,841 
- Staff salaries, overtime, and bonuses 7,391,572  6,736,702 
- Medical expenses 45,878  26,671 
- Other employee benefit expenses 38,536  36,175 
    
 
16 Costs of governance activities  
 
Costs of governance activities include: 
 

  2022  2021 
  $  $ 
    
Board Member reimbursement 24,285  9,211 
Professional charges 68,850  75,050 
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17 Other expenditure  
 
Other expenditure include: 
 

   2022  2021 
  Note $  $ 
     
Bad debts written off   2,245    -    
Printing and stationery  30,709  37,875 
Repairs & maintenance  81,858  97,071 
Security services  76,200  72,700 
Depreciation of plant and equipment 3 422,700  276,242 
Amortisation of intangible assets 4 19,834  3,222 
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 5 481,765  435,682 
Depreciation of investment properties 6 48,379  - 
Insurance  20,884  20,215 
Lease expenses relating to short-term leases 11 75,311  99,739 
Lease expenses relating to low-value asset 11 300  300 
Utilities  304,595  255,696 
Telecommunication  65,987  52,188 
Outsource service fees  33,818  68,867 
IT Expenses  237,276  240,125 
Conservancy and Service Charges  156,781  152,330 
Marketing Expenses  73,568  -    
Bank Charges  108,481  110,982 

 
 
18 Tax expense 
 
The Home is an approved charity organisation under the Charities Act, Chapter 37. No provision for taxation has 
been made in the financial statements as the Home is a registered charity with income tax exemption under 
Income Tax Act, Chapter 134 except for income received that is not from Donations, Fund raising and Grant 
from Government. 
 
A reconciliation of income tax expenses applicable to surplus before tax at the statutory tax rate to income tax 
expenses at the effective income tax of the Home are as follows: 
 
    2022 
    $ 
     
Surplus before tax    1,572,605 
     
Tax at statutory rate of 17% (2021: 17%)    267,343 
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses *    2,626,335 
Tax effect on non-taxable income **    (2,884,794) 
    8,884 

 
* Non-deductible expenses are expenses related to charitable activities of the Home. 
 
** Non-taxable income pertains to income related to donations, fund raising, and grant received from the 
government.
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19 Tax exempt receipt 
 
The Home enjoys a concessionary tax treatment whereby qualifying donors are granted 2.5 times double tax 
deduction for the donations made to the Home. The IPC status was renewed for 21 months (2021: 9 months) 
with effect from 7 July 2022 to 6 April 2024 (2021: 7 October 2021 to 6 July 2022.) 
 

  2022  2021 
  $  $ 
    
    
Donations for which tax-exempt receipts were issued 6,015,559  6,101,670 

 
 
20 Significant related party transactions 
 
Some of the Home’s transactions and arrangements are with a related party and the effect of these on the 
basis determined between the parties is reflected in these financial statements.  
 
For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Home if the 
Home has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence over the 
party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Home and the party is subject 
to common control, or the party is a member of key management personnel of the Home, or the party is 
a close family member of any individual of the key management personnel or controlling party. 

Related parties include the co-operative entity that provides key management personnel who have the 
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Home. 
 
Other than as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statement, the following transactions took place 
between the Home and the related party at terms agreed between the parties: 
 

  2022  2021 
  $  $ 
    
Receipt of AIC grant by a related party on behalf of the Home 7,073,127  3,683,209 
AIC grant transferred to Home by a related party (7,073,127)  (3,683,209) 
Donation service fees expense 1,659,364  877,689 
Reimbursement of expenses by a related party 24,373  - 
Reimbursement of expenses from a related party -  2,189 
Rent and office expense from related party 24,148  27,957 
    

Compensation of key management personnel  
 
The remuneration of key management personnel during the year is as follows:  
 

  2022  2021 
  $  $ 
    
Short-term benefit 302,198  242,428 
Post-employment benefits 8,070  10,203 
 310,268  252,631 
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20 Significant related party transactions (Cont’d) 
 
Number of key managements in remuneration bands: 

  2022  2021 
     
$300,001 and above 1  - 
$200,001- $300,000 -  1 
$200,000 and below -  - 
 1  1 

 
The annual remuneration (comprising basic salary, bonuses, allowances and employer’s contribution to 
Central Provident Fund) of the three (2021: three) highest paid staff classified by remuneration bands are 
as follows: 
 

  2022  2021 
     
$300,001 and above 1  - 
$200,001-$300,000 -  1 
$100,000-$200,000 2  2 
 3  3 

 
Number of paid staff who are close members of the family of the Executive Head or Board members, who 
each remuneration exceeding $50,000 during the year, in bands of $100,000: 
 

  2022  2021 Name of Executive Head 
of Board Member with 
whom the staff is a close 
family member 

$50,000- $150,000 1  1 Subramaniam s/o  
      Krishnan 

 
 
21 Commitments 
 
Capital commitments 
 
Estimated amounts committed at the end of the reporting year for future capital expenditure but not 
recognised in the financial statements are as follows: 
 

  2022  2021 
  $  $ 
    
Capital commitment for future expenditure for:    
- renovation -  272,000 
- computer software 365,020  53,569 
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22 Financial risk management  
 
Management monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Home to minimise 
adverse potential effects on financial performance. These risks include market risk (including interest rate 
risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and fair value risk. Management manages and monitors these exposures to 
ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and effective manner. 
 
There has been no change to the Home’s exposure to these financial risks or the manner in which it 
manages and measures these risks. Market risk is the risk that change in market prices, such as interest 
rates will affect the Home’s income. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control 
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk. 
 
Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis indicated below: 
 
22.1 Interest rate risk management 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Home’s financial instruments will 
fluctuate because of changes in interest rates. The Home’s exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily 
from fixed deposits placed with financial institutions. 
 
As the fixed deposits are earning interest at fixed interest rate, the Home does not expect any significant 
effect on the Home’s statement of financial activities arising from the effects of reasonably possible 
changes to interest rates on interest bearing financial instruments at the end of the financial year. 
 
22.2 Credit risk 
 
Credit risk is the potential financial loss resulting from the failure of a counterparty to settle its financial 
and contractual obligations to the Home as and when they fall due. The maximum exposure to credit risk 
in the event that the counterparties fail to perform their obligations as at the end of financial year in 
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amounts of those assets as stated in 
the statement of financial position. 
 
The Home develops and maintains its credit risk gradings to categorise exposures according to their 
degree of risk of default. The majority of the Home’s receivables relate to grant receivables from 
government bodies which is not subjected to credit risk assessment. 
 
The Home has adopted procedures in monitoring its credit risk. Cash and cash equivalents are held with 
reputable institutions and are subject to immaterial credit loss.  
 
The Home does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty. 
 
The Home’s surplus funds are also managed centrally by placing them with reputable financial institutions 
on varying maturities. 
 
22.3 Liquidity risk 
 
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Home will encounter difficulties in meeting its short-term 
obligations due to shortage of funds. The Home’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from 
mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. It is managed by matching the payment 
and receipt cycles. The Home’s objective is to maintain an adequate level of cash and cash equivalents to 
finance the Home’s operation.  
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22 Financial risk management (Cont’d) 
 
22.3 Liquidity risk (Cont’d) 
 
The following table analyses the remaining contractual maturity profile of the Home’s financial liabilities 
based on contractual undiscounted cash flow, including estimated interest payments. 
 

 ----------------Contractual undiscounted cash flows--------------   
  Less than Between Over  Carrying 
  1 year 2 to 5 years 5 years Total amount 
 $ $ $ $ $ 
2022      
      
Lease liabilities 433,284 312,720 - 746,004 738,185 
Other payables 2,183,323 - - 2,183,323 2,183,323 
 2,616,607 312,720 - 2,929,327 2,921,508 
      
2021      
      
Lease liabilities 395,335 508,405 - 903,740 894,494 
Other payables 2,027,073 - - 2,027,073 2,027,073 
 2,422,408 508,405 - 2,930,813 2,921,567 

 
22.4 Currency risk  
 
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign 
exchange rates. Currency risk arises when transactions are denominated in foreign currencies. 
 
The principal activities of the Home are carried out in Singapore dollars. Hence, the Home does not have 
exposure to foreign currency risk. 
 
 
23 Financial instruments  
 
The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities at the reporting date by categories are as 
follows: 
 

  2022  2021 
  $  $ 
At amortised cost    
Financial assets    
Receivables* 684,265  319,184 
Cash and cash equivalents 39,452,112     46,072,437 
 40,136,377  46,391,621 

 
At amortised cost    
Financial liabilities    
Lease liabilities 738,185  894,494 
Other payables** 2,183,323  2,027,073 
 2,921,508  2,921,567 

 
* exclude prepayment and grant receivables from government 
** exclude deferred income and GST payable 
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manages and measures these risks. Market risk is the risk that change in market prices, such as interest 
rates will affect the Home’s income. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control 
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk. 
 
Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis indicated below: 
 
22.1 Interest rate risk management 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Home’s financial instruments will 
fluctuate because of changes in interest rates. The Home’s exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily 
from fixed deposits placed with financial institutions. 
 
As the fixed deposits are earning interest at fixed interest rate, the Home does not expect any significant 
effect on the Home’s statement of financial activities arising from the effects of reasonably possible 
changes to interest rates on interest bearing financial instruments at the end of the financial year. 
 
22.2 Credit risk 
 
Credit risk is the potential financial loss resulting from the failure of a counterparty to settle its financial 
and contractual obligations to the Home as and when they fall due. The maximum exposure to credit risk 
in the event that the counterparties fail to perform their obligations as at the end of financial year in 
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amounts of those assets as stated in 
the statement of financial position. 
 
The Home develops and maintains its credit risk gradings to categorise exposures according to their 
degree of risk of default. The majority of the Home’s receivables relate to grant receivables from 
government bodies which is not subjected to credit risk assessment. 
 
The Home has adopted procedures in monitoring its credit risk. Cash and cash equivalents are held with 
reputable institutions and are subject to immaterial credit loss.  
 
The Home does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty. 
 
The Home’s surplus funds are also managed centrally by placing them with reputable financial institutions 
on varying maturities. 
 
22.3 Liquidity risk 
 
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Home will encounter difficulties in meeting its short-term 
obligations due to shortage of funds. The Home’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from 
mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. It is managed by matching the payment 
and receipt cycles. The Home’s objective is to maintain an adequate level of cash and cash equivalents to 
finance the Home’s operation.  
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22 Financial risk management (Cont’d) 
 
22.3 Liquidity risk (Cont’d) 
 
The following table analyses the remaining contractual maturity profile of the Home’s financial liabilities 
based on contractual undiscounted cash flow, including estimated interest payments. 
 

 ----------------Contractual undiscounted cash flows--------------   
  Less than Between Over  Carrying 
  1 year 2 to 5 years 5 years Total amount 
 $ $ $ $ $ 
2022      
      
Lease liabilities 433,284 312,720 - 746,004 738,185 
Other payables 2,183,323 - - 2,183,323 2,183,323 
 2,616,607 312,720 - 2,929,327 2,921,508 
      
2021      
      
Lease liabilities 395,335 508,405 - 903,740 894,494 
Other payables 2,027,073 - - 2,027,073 2,027,073 
 2,422,408 508,405 - 2,930,813 2,921,567 

 
22.4 Currency risk  
 
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign 
exchange rates. Currency risk arises when transactions are denominated in foreign currencies. 
 
The principal activities of the Home are carried out in Singapore dollars. Hence, the Home does not have 
exposure to foreign currency risk. 
 
 
23 Financial instruments  
 
The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities at the reporting date by categories are as 
follows: 
 

  2022  2021 
  $  $ 
At amortised cost    
Financial assets    
Receivables* 684,265  319,184 
Cash and cash equivalents 39,452,112     46,072,437 
 40,136,377  46,391,621 

 
At amortised cost    
Financial liabilities    
Lease liabilities 738,185  894,494 
Other payables** 2,183,323  2,027,073 
 2,921,508  2,921,567 

 
* exclude prepayment and grant receivables from government 
** exclude deferred income and GST payable 
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24 Fair value measurement 

Definition of fair value 

FRSs define fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

Fair value hierarchy 

The Home classifies fair value measurement using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of 
the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels: 

(a) Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
(b) Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the

assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);
and

(c) Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the carrying amounts and fair values of 
non-financial assets and liabilities, including their fair value hierarchy level, are set out below: 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
Note $ $ $ $ 

2022 
Non-financial assets 
Investment properties 6 - - 9,700,000 9,700,000 

Lease liabilities 

The carrying amounts of finance leases approximate their fair values as they bear interest at rates which 
approximate the current incremental borrowing rate for similar types of leasing arrangements. 

Fair value measurement of financial assets and liabilities 

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receivables and other payables approximate their 
respective fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial instruments.  

The Home does not anticipate that the carrying amounts recorded at the end of the reporting period 
would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or settled. 
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